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Highlights
Our profile

A leader in financial services in Iceland, {slandsbanki is a universal bank with total
assets of ISK 1,205bn and a 25-50% market share across all domestic business
segments.

Building on over 140 years of servicing key industries, islandsbanki has developed
specific expertise in tourism, seafood and energy related industries.

Driven by the vision to be #1 for service, islandsbanki's relationship banking
business model is propelled by three business divisions that manage and build
relationships with the Bank's customers.

islandsbanki has developed a wide range of online services such as the
islandsbanki, Kort and Kass apps, enabling customers to do their banking
whenever and wherever. At the same time, the Bank continues to operate the
most efficient branch network in Iceland through its strategically located 14
branches.

In 2018, islandsbanki led the Icelandic Customer Satisfactory Index for banks for
the sixth consecutive year and in July 2018, Euromoney selected [slandsbanki as
the best bank in Iceland.

islandsbanki has a BBB+/A-2 rating from S&P Global Ratings.
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*Based on Gallup survey regarding primary bank.

**Earnings on regular income now includes profit from discontinued operations.

The Bank has introduced a new long term minimum capital target of 16% (CET1 16%),
resulting in adjustments to its ROE on regular operations from previous levels (CET1 15%).
***The cost/income ratio for parent company 1Q19 is 58.1%.



Directors' Report

These are the condensed consolidated interim financial statements for the first quarter of 2019 (“the interim financial statements”) of
islandsbanki hf. (“the Bank” or “islandsbanki”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group").

Operations in the reporting period

islandsbanki is a universal bank offering comprehensive financial services to households, corporations, and institutional investors in
Iceland. The Group is one of Iceland's largest banking and financial services groups, with a strong domestic market share.

The profit from the Group's operations for the reporting period amounted to ISK 2,589 million, which corresponds to 5.9% annualised return
on equity. At the end of the reporting period, the Group employed 1,070 full-time members of staff, including 834 within the Bank itself.

Net interest income rose by 5% between years as loan growth was very robust in 2018. Net fee income was up by 16%, due to strong
growth in both the Bank and its subsidiaries. Other income was about 1.6bn and mostly explained by a settlement of the Bank's claim
deriving from the acquisition of Byr savings bank back in 2011. Salary costs were up by 3% between years and other operating expenses
grew by 4%.

Net impairments were negative by ISK 0.9 billion and are largely explained by a less favourable economic environment and forward looking
provisions under the IFRS 9 standard. At the same time the Bank's ratio of non performing loans increased only modestly from 2.0% to
2.2%.

The Group's loan book grew by 3.2% in the first quarter on the back of strong demand in all lending units and higher FX denominated
loans as the Icelandic kréna weakened in the quarter.

Customer deposits increased by 5.6% during the quarter, mainly on the back of an increase in deposits from institutional investors. The
Bank continued to have good access to capital markets and issued ISK16 billion in covered bonds in the quarter and about ISK 30 billion
in foreign currency denominated senior unsecured private placements. In the beginning of April the Bank issued a new EUR 300 million
benchmark transaction with maturity in 2022 and at the same time tendered for about the same amount a part of the EUR 500 million bond
that is maturing in 2020, thereby effectively managing the maturity profile of the Bank's outstanding debt.

At the Bank's annual general meeting in March, Témas Mar Sigurdsson was elected as a new board member and will serve as Vice-
Chairman of the Board. Témas has extensive experience from management roles in the aluminum industry and is currently a senior vice-
president of strategic alliances for Alcoa.

The Bank engaged BCG Nordics to help to formulate a new strategy for the Bank and the outcome was presented to the Bank's employees
at a stategic summit at the end of March. The strategy work was based on extensive research, industry insights and benchmarks, identifying
the competitive advantages and future strategic positioning in a changing environment. The outcome of the work was an articulation of the
Bank's purpose, values and vision along with a list of strategic initiatives to be implemented in the next five years. The purpose of “Moving
Iceland forward through empowering our customers to succeed” was defined through input from workshops with all employees. It
articulates a more active role of the Bank in a shaping and progressing society. The purpose is further supported by three values that will
serve as a guiding principles for employees in all their efforts: “Passion, Professionalism, and Collaboration”.

To live the purpose and values, islandsbanki continues to be guided by the vision to be '#1 for service', placing the customer at the centre
of gravity for value creation. The Bank will put a strong emphasis on technology to facilitate innovation and development of simple, efficient
solutions for its customers. Going forward, the Bank will be reinforcing its commitment to corporate social responsibility (CSR) by integrating
social and environmental impact as a driver of strategy and value creation within the Bank. As such, the Bank's CSR work will be centered
around four of the United Nations's seventeen SDGs: #4 Quality education; #5 Gender equality; #9 Industry, innovation and infrastructure;
and #13 Climate action.

Outlook

The Icelandic economy is cooling markedly after a period of robust growth. The latest public forecast from islandsbanki Research,
published in January, assumes 1.1% GDP growth in 2019. That forecast is likely to be revised downwards following setbacks in the tourist
and seafood sectors in Q1. Growth is expected to pick up again in 2020 as business investment and the tourism sector recover.

Debt levels of households, corporates and the public sector have remained stable in recent quarters and the current level of
resilience in the domestic economy and financial system is considerable as a result.

The Bank's ratio of non-performing loans remains low overall and borrower debt levels are at historically low levels. As a result of the
forward looking mechanism of the IFRS 9 standard, it can however be expected that the slower growth in the economy will lead to
increased impairments in the short term. The Bank continues to have a strong capital and liquidity position and is therefore prepared for
changes in the economic activity.

islandsbanki hf. Condensed Consolidated Interim
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Directors' Report

Statement by the Board of Directors and the CEO

The interim financial statements for the period 1 January to 31 March 2019 have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance
with the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34 Interim Financial Reporting as adopted by the European Union; the Act on Annual
Accounts, no. 3/2006; the Act on Financial Undertakings, no. 161/2002; and rules on accounting for credit institutions, where applicable.

To the best of our knowledge, these interim financial statements provide a true and fair view of the Group's operating profits and cash
flows in the reporting period and its financial position as of 31 March 2019.

The Board of Directors and the CEO have today discussed and approved the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for
the period 1 January to 31 March 2019.

Képavogur, 8 May 2019

Board of Directors:

Fridrik Sophusson, Chairman

Toémas Mar Sigurdsson, Vice-Chairman
Anna bérdardattir

Audur Finnbogadottir

Arni Stefansson

Hallgrimur Snorrason

Heidran Jénsdottir

Chief Executive Officer:

Birna Einarsdéttir

islandsbanki hf. Condensed Consolidated Interim
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Consolidated Interim Income Statement

2019 2018

Notes 1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3

INEEIEST INCOME™ ... .o 15,227 14,995
INEEIEST EXPENSE ..ttt ettt e e st e et e e sbe e e s bneee s (7,075) (7,255)
Net interest income 10 8,152 7,740
Fee and cOMMISSION INCOME .......cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e 5,011 4,273
Fee and COMMISSION EXPENSE .....ccoiiiuuiiiiieeiiiiiiee ettt e e e eeae e (1,794) (1,495)
Net fee and commission income 11 3,217 2,778
Net financial INCOME (EXPENSE) .......iiiiuiiiiiiiieiiiee ettt e e 12 448 (283)
Net foreign €XChange 10SS ........cooiuiiiiiiiieiiiie e e 13 (30) (10)
Other Operating iINCOMIE ......oiuuiiiiiiie ettt et e e steee e 14 1,144 13
Other net operating income 1,562 (280)
Total operating income 12,931 10,238
Salaries and related expenses 15 (4,051) (3,926)
Other OpEerating EXPENSES ......cccuutieiiiieiieie et e ettt et et e e bb e e stre e e be e e s sabeeesabeeeaneees 16 (3,039) (2,924)
Contribution to the Depositors' and Investors' Guarantee Fund ..............ccooceeeieeennne (312) (292)
BANK TBX .1ttt ettt ettt e e e b e nbe e e teee s (880) (785)
Total operating expenses (8,282) (7,927)
Profit before net impairment on financial assets 4,649 2,311
Net impairment on fiNANCIal ASSELS .........ccoiiiiiiiiiiieiie e 17 (919) 88
Profit before tax 3,730 2,399
INCOME TAX EXPEINSE ....veiiiiiiieiitie et ee ettt ettt et e e bt sttt e e sb e e e e bbeeeenbeeeanneeas 18 (1,153) (1,015)
Profit for the period from continuing operations 2,577 1,384
Profit from discontinued operations, net of INCOME taXx ...........ccccocviiniieiiiiec e, 19 12 713
Profit for the period 2,589 2,097

*Of which interest income amounting to ISK 14,639 million (2018: ISK 14,514 million) is calculated using the effective interest method.

Profit attributable to:

Shareholders of ISIaNdShaNKi hf. ...........c.c.cveveiviiiriiiieeeeeee e 2,651 2,186
NON-CONLFOING INEEIESES ....eeiiiiiiiii et (62) (89)
Profit for the period 2,589 2,097

Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the
shareholders of [SIaNASDANKI Nif. ..........cccccoiiiiiiiiiicieicee e 20 0.26 0.15

The notes on pages 11 to 54 are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income

2019 2018

1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3

Profit fOr the PEIHOM .........cvevieeeieeeeeeee ettt 2,589 2,097
Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Changes in fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, net of tax ................ 19 302

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 19 302

2,608 2,399

Total comprehensive income for the period

The notes on pages 11 to 54 are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Interim Statement of Financial Position

Notes 31.3.2019 31.12.2018
Assets
Cash and balances with Central Bank ...........ccccccccooiiiiiii, 21 129,039 135,056
Bonds and debt iNStrUMENTS ..........ooveiiiiiiiiiee e 5 80,809 69,415
Shares and equity INSLIUMENTS .........uuiiiiiiiiiiiee e e 5 15,268 13,074
DEIVALIVES ...eeiiiiiieiee e et e et e e e et e e e e st e e e e e s st e e e e e e sntnbeeeaeesnnnnneeeas 22 4,837 4,550
Loans to credit INSHULIONS ..........cvvviiiiiiiiiiiieieeeceeeeeeee e, 23 65,145 41,577
LO@NS t0 CUSTOMIEIS ....viviiiieiieiiieieieieee et ee ettt ettt et et e e et et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aeeeaeeaaaaaaaeens 24 873,530 846,599
INVESTMENES 1N @SSOCIALES .....vvvviiiiieiiiiiiieee et 26 682 682
Property and EqUIPIMENT ..........ooiiiiiiiiie e 28 9,642 5,271
INtANGIDIE ASSELS ... 4,868 5,002
(01 [T 11T =Y £ 29 21,408 9,177
Total Assets 1,205,228 1,130,403
Liabilities
Deposits from Central Bank and credit institutions 30 16,404 15,619
Deposits froM CUSIOMELS .......uuviiiiiiiiiiiiiee et 31 611,303 578,959
Derivative instruments and Short POSItioNS ..........ccccoovuiirniiieiiiie e 22 7,325 5,521
Debt issued and other borrowed fuNds ...............eevvvviiiiiiiiiieiiiiiererererereeeeeeeeeeens 33 325,035 300,976
Y0 o o] o [T F= C=To I [0 F=T o T PSPPSR 34 16,468 16,216
TaX HADIItIES ....ccieieieiee ettt re e e b e seseseseaeaees 8,303 7,150
Other abilItIES ......ccoiiiiiiie e e 36 46,769 29,649
Total Liabilities 1,031,607 954,090
Equity
S g F= o 1o - | PP TR PPPR 10,000 10,000
SNAME PrEMIUM L.eeiiiiiiiiiii et e e e e e e e e e st e e e e e snnteeeaeeeas 55,000 55,000
Reserves ................ 6,776 6,499
Retained earnings 99,401 102,496
Total equity attributable to the equity holders of islandsbanki hf. 171,177 173,995
NON-CONLrOIING INTEIESTS ....oiiiiiieiiiie it 2,444 2,318
Total Equity 173,621 176,313
Total Liabilities and Equity 1,205,228 1,130,403

The notes on pages 11 to 54 are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Interim Statement of Changes in Equity

Liability Total Non-

Share Share Statutory Restricted Fair value credit Retained  shareholders' controlling Total

capital premium reserve reserves reserve reserve earnings equity interests equity
Equity as at 1.1.2019 10,000 55,000 2,500 3,750 625 (376) 102,496 173,995 2,318 176,313
Profit for the period ...........cccoiiiiiiiii e 2,651 2,651 (62) 2,589
Dividends PaId ........c.cereiriiiriiiiie e (5,300) (5,300) (5,300)
Net change in fair value of financial assets ..............ccc....... 326 326 188 514
Net change in fair value of financial liabilities ...................... (495) (495) (495)
Restricted due to capitalised development cost .................. (66) 66 - -
Restricted due to fair value changes ...........c.cccccovvieinnicenns 525 (525) - -
Restricted due to subsidiaries and associates .................... (13) 13 - -
Equity as at 31.3.2019 10,000 55,000 2,500 4,196 951 (871) 99,401 171,177 2,444 173,621
Equity as at 1.1.2018 10,000 55,000 2,500 3,440 239 (1,486) 104,760 174,453 2,485 176,938
Profit for the period ...........cccociiiiiiii e 2,186 2,186 (89) 2,097
Dividends PaId ........c.eereiriiiiiieiie e (113,000) (13,000) (13,000)
Net change in fair value of financial assets ..............ccc........ 33 33 20 53
Net change in fair value of financial liabilities ...... 249 249 249
Restricted due to capitalised development cost 164 (164) - -
Restricted due to fair value changes ...........c.cccccovvieiinicenns (107) 107 - -
Restricted due to subsidiaries and associates (41) 41 - -
Equity as at 31.3.2018 10,000 55,000 2,500 3,456 272 (1,237) 93,930 163,921 2,416 166,337

The Annual General Meeting ("AGM") for the operating year 2018 was held on 21 March 2019. At the AGM shareholders approved the Board's proposal to pay dividends to shareholders amounting to ISK
5,300 million which is equivalent to ISK 0.53 per share (2018: ISK 1.30 per share). The dividends were paid on 27 March 2019.

The notes on pages 11 to 54 are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Interim Statement of Cash Flows

2019 2018
Notes 1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3
Profit fOr the PEIOA ......co.uiiiieii ettt 2,589 2,097
Non-cash items included in profit for the period ... 5,767 4,084
Changes in operating assets and labilitieSs ...........cceiiiiiiiiiiiiii e (25,864) (49,483)
Dividends received ..........cccccoeiiiniiiieninnn. 23 11
Income tax and bank tax paid (809) (883)
Net cash used in operating activities (118,294) (44,174)
Proceeds from sale of property and equUIPMENT ..........cccviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 7 4
Purchase of property and @QUIPMENT ..........cioiiiiiiiiiiaiiie et (121) (64)
Purchase of INtangible aSSets .........c..ooiiiiiiii (19) (232)
Net cash used in investing activities (133) (292)
Proceeds from DOITOWINGS ........uiiiiiieiiiiie ittt e b e e sbneeeanns 37,993 55,299
Repayment of borrowings ....... (21,712) (3,428)
Repayment of lease liabilities . (93) -
DIVIAENAS PRI .....veeeeiiieeie ettt e ettt (4,134) (10,140)
Net cash provided by financing activities 12,054 41,731
Net decrease in cash and cash equIVaIENtS ..ot (6,373) (2,735)
Effects of foreign exchange rate Changes ...........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 9 (60)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period .............cccociiiiiiiniiiis 143,203 187,438
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 136,839 184,643
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
(2= 1Y a W a1 4 F- 12 [o PP PPPPPPPRPROY 21 4,088 2,025
Cash balances with Central BanK .............cocuiiiieiiiiiieiie e 21 124,951 175,004
BaANK ACCOUNES ....oooiiiiiiiiiieee e 23 24,434 22,702
Mandatory reserve and special restricted balances with Central Bank .............ccccccevvveeenne. 21 (16,634) (15,088)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 136,839 184,643

The Group has prepared its consolidated interim statement of cash flows using the indirect method. The statement is based on the net
profit after tax for the period and shows the cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities and the increase or decrease
in cash and cash equivalents during the period.

Interest received from 1 January to 31 March 2019 was ISK 14,954 million (2018: ISK 14,170 million) and interest paid in the same
period 2019 was ISK 5,471 million (2018: ISK 4,224 million). Interest paid is defined as having been paid when it has been deposited
into the customer account and is available for the customer's disposal.

The notes on pages 11 to 54 are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Interim Statement of Cash Flows

2019 2018

1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3

Depreciation and IMPAIMMENT ..........uuiiiiie et et e e e e s bbb e e e e e e e bbb e e e e e e e abbbaeeaeeeannnneeeas 241 164
Amortisation oOf INtANGIDIE ASSELS ......couiiiiiii e 153 51
Share Of gaiN OF ASSOCIALES .......iuiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e e e e e e e s abbsae e e e e e ababeeaeeas - 32
Accrued interest and fair value changes on debt issued and subordinated l0ans ............ccccoccvveeeeiininns 2,527 2,500
Net impairment 0N fINANCIAI ASSELS .....oiiiiiiiiiiiie et e e e e abee s 907 (88)
FOreign @XCNANGE [OSS ... ..uiiiiiiiiiee ettt e ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e ab b e et e e e e e nnbb e e e e e e e anbnbeeaeans 30 10
Net gain on sale of subsidiary, property and eqUIPMENt .............ccoiiiiiiiiiieiiiiee e (2) (1)
Unrealised fair value (gain) loss recognised in profit Or 0SS ...........cccoriiiiiiiiiiiiiic e (110) 329
Net profit on non-current assets classified as held for sale ..........cccccoiiiiii e, (12) (713)
BANK T8X ... a e —e e et et et ettt e e et et a e et e ettt et et et e e e aaaaaaaeaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaas 880 1,015
Income tax 1,153 785
Non-cash items included in profit for the period 5,767 4,084
Mandatory reserve and special restricted balances with Central Bank ............cccccociiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeen 478 2,478
Loans to credit institutions (22,109) (16,038)
Loans to customers (21,801) (28,784)
Bonds and debt INSITUMENTS .......c.uiiiiiiiiii et (9,521) (23,594)
Shares and equIty INSTFUMENTS .........iiiiiiiiiiiieii ettt e e e e e e e st e eaaes (1,530) (254)
Other OPEratiNg @SSELS ......vviiiiiii ittt ettt s et e st e et e sbe e sbneeeeaes (11,982) (432)
Non-current assets and liabilities held for Sale ..., 38 2,440
Deposits with credit institutions and Central Bank .............ooocuiiiiiiiiiiii e 618 2,500
DEPOSILS FTOM CUSIOMELS ... ..iiiiiiiiei ittt e et e e e e ettt e e e e e en et e e e e s assbeeeee e e s nntsseaeeeaantnbeeeeeaeannnnes 28,896 11,127
Trading financial aDIlItIES ...........ooouiiiii e - (270)
DIBIIVALIVES ...ttt ettt e bttt e oo bt bt e bt a ettt (368) 1,105
Other operating lIAaDIlITIES ........cooiiiiiiie et e e 11,417 239
Changes in operating assets and liabilities (25,864) (49,483)

Non-cash transactions 2019
The Bank paid dividends amounting to ISK 5,300 million. Thereof were non-cash transactions amounting to ISK 1,166 million in
withheld capital income tax due in May 2019.

During the period the Bank repurchased own debt securities amounting to ISK 288 million by issuing new debt.
Non-cash transactions 2018

The Bank paid dividends amounting to ISK 13,000 million. Thereof were non-cash transactions amounting to ISK 2,860 million in
withheld capital income tax due in May 2018.

The notes on pages 11 to 54 are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Corporate information

islandsbanki hf., the parent company, was incorporated on 8 October 2008 and is a limited liability company domiciled in Iceland. The
condensed consolidated interim financial statements for the first quarter of 2019 (“the interim financial statements") comprise the
financial statements of Islandsbanki hf. ("the Bank" or "islandsbanki") and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group".

At the end of the first quarter 2019 the Bank was wholly owned by the Icelandic Government. The shares are administered by the
Icelandic State Financial Investments in accordance with Act no. 88/2009 on Icelandic State Financial Investments.

The interim financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of islandsbanki hf. on 8 May 2019.

2. Basis of preparation

The interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34 Interim
Financial Reporting, as adopted by the European Union and additional requirements in the Act on Annual Accounts no. 3/2006, the
Act on Financial Undertakings no. 161/2002 and rules on accounting for credit institutions.

The interim financial statements do not include all the information required for annual financial statements and should be read in
conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018, as well as the
unaudited Pillar 3 Report for the year ended 31 December 2018. Both are available on the Bank's website: www.islandsbanki.is.

On 1 January 2019 the Group implemented IFRS 16 - Leases, the impact of the implementation on the opening balance sheet at 1
January 2019 is disclosed in Note 3.

The Group's management has made an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the
Group has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Therefore, the interim financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

The interim financial statements have been prepared on an historical cost basis except for the following items in the statement of
financial position: bonds and debt instruments which are measured at fair value, shares and equity instruments which are measured at
fair value, derivative financial instruments which are measured at fair value, non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held
for sale which are measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and certain debt securities which are
measured at fair value. Recognised financial liabilities designated as hedged items in qualifying fair value hedge relationships are
measured at amortised cost adjusted for changes in fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

The interim financial statements are presented in Icelandic kréna (ISK), which is the functional currency of islandsbanki hf. All
amounts presented in ISK have been rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.
Important accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the interim financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses recognised. Actual results
may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are under constant review. Changes in accounting estimates are recognised when they occur.

Key areas where management has made difficult, complex or subjective judgements, include those relating to the allowance for credit
losses, the fair value of financial instruments and intangible assets.

Changes in presentation

The Group has changed its presentation in the consolidated interim statement of financial position as follows:
- The line item "Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale" has been included in the line item "Other assets"
- The line item "Non-current liabilities and disposal groups held for sale" has been included in the line item "Other liabilities"

3. Changes to accounting policies

The accounting policies in the interim financial statements are consistent with those applied in the Group's audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, except for changes to the accounting for leases resulting from the
adoption of IFRS 16. Those changes are described below.

IFRS 16 — Leases

The Group adopted a new IFRS standard, IFRS 16 — Leases, which replaced IAS 17, IFRIC 4, SIC 15 and SIC 27 as of 1 January
2019. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for most leases under a single on-balance sheet model.

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 16, the Group has changed its accounting policy for lease contracts as follows.
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3. Contd

The Group as a lessee

Recognition

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components and account for lease and non-lease components of a contract as a single lease
component. This policy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 January 2019.

The Group recognises a lease liability and a right-of-use asset at the lease commencement date.

Measurement

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, both fixed and variable, discounted using the
entity's incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method and
remeasured when there is a change in future payments, e.g. arising from a change in an index or an assessment of whether extension
or termination options will be exercised.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred less any lease incentives received. For any
remeasurement of the lease liability a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or recorded
in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The right-of-use-asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the
lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.

Modification

If a lease modification increases the scope of the lease by adding a right to use of one or more underlying assets and the
consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increased scope and any
adjustments to the price that reflects the circumstances of the particular contract, then the maodification is accounted for as a separate
lease.

For lease modifications that are not accounted for as separate leases the lease term of the modified lease is redetermined and the
lease liability remeasured using the revised lease payments and discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the effective date
of maodification. Any adjustment of the lease liability is then correspondingly made to the right-of-use asset.

Presentation

The Group presents right-of-use assets in the line item "Property and equipment” and lease liabilities in the line item "Other liabilities"
in the statement of financial position. Maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 50. Interest on lease liabilities is
recognised in profit or loss in the line item "Interest expense". Depreciation of right-of-use assets is recognised in profit or loss in the
line item "Other operating expenses".

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Impact of adoption of IFRS 16

The Group applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative information has not been
restated. On transition to IFRS 16 the Group elected to apply the practical expedient to apply the standard only to contracts previously
identified as leases under IAS 17.

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted with each entity's
incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019. Right-of-use assets are measured at an amount equal to the lease liabilities at
transition, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments.

On transition to IFRS 16, the Group recognised ISK 4,489 million of right-of-use assets and the same amount in lease liabilities. All
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at transition and throughout the first quarter of 2019 stem from CPI-linked real estate lease
commitments for offices, branches and storage. When measuring lease liabilities, each entity discounted lease payments using its
incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019. The weighted average rate applied by the Group is 2.12% for CPI-indexed leases.
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Reconciliation between IAS 17 lease commitments and IFRS 16 lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019

Operating lease commitments at 31 December 2018 as disclosed in the Group's consolidated financial statements ............ 5,143
Effects of discounting operating lease commitments using the incremental borrowing rate (593)
Recognition exemption for short-term and I0W-Value aSSet [EASES ........c..uuiiiiiiiiiiiiii e (61)
Lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 4,489

When applying IFRS 16 to leases previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17 the Group used the following practical
expedients; not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term and for leases of low-
value assets; exclude initial direct costs from measuring right of use assets at the date of initial application, and using hindsight when
determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group as a lessor

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating
or finance leases using similar principles as in IAS 17. Therefore, IFRS 16 did not have an impact for leases where the Group is the
lessor.

4. Operating segments

Segment information is presented in accordance with the Group's management and internal reporting structure. The Bank has three
main business segments: Personal Banking, Business Banking and Corporate & Investment Banking. Operating segments pay and
receive interest to and from Treasury to reflect the allocation of capital, funding costs and the relevant risk premium. The accounting
policies for the reportable segments are in line with the Group's accounting policies. The Group operates mainly in the Icelandic
market.

The Group comprises the following operating segments:

Personal Banking

Personal Banking provides comprehensive financial services to individuals, such as lending, savings and payments. islandsbanki's
customers are increasingly taking care of their day-to-day banking via digital solutions such as apps, the online bank and the secure
web chat. Customers can also visit the Bank's efficient branch network for comprehensive consultancy services.

Business Banking

Business Banking provides wide-ranging financial services to small- and medium-sized enterprises. Business Banking is organised
around the branches where it can service its customers close to their own business. In addition, Business Banking operates Ergo, the
asset based financing unit of the Bank.

Corporate & Investment Banking

Corporate & Investment Banking provides universal banking services to large companies, municipalities, institutional investors and
affluent individuals. Services include customised products and services to customers including lending and advisory, risk
management, brokerage and private banking services. The division is sector-focused, building and maintaining relationships with key
customer segments within Iceland. Outside of Iceland, islandsbanki has a special focus on the North Atlantic seafood industry,
leveraging its expertise in the domestic market and global contacts.

Treasury and Proprietary trading
Treasury is responsible for funding the Bank's operations and for managing the internal pricing framework. It is also responsible for
the Bank's balance sheet management and for the relations with investors, financial institutions, stock exchanges and rating agencies.
Equity that is not allocated to business units sits within Treasury. Proprietary Trading includes equity and debt investments in the
trading book and banking book.

Cost centres

Cost centres comprise the CEO's office (Human Resources, Marketing & Communications, Strategy and Legal), Finance excluding
Treasury and Proprietary Trading, Operations & IT, Risk Management and Compliance. Group Internal Audit is included in cost
centres, however, it is independent from the Bank and the Chief Audit Executive reports directly to the Bank's Board of Directors.

Subsidiaries, eliminations and adjustments
Subsidiaries include Borgun hf., Islandssjédir hf., Allianz island hf. and other less significant subsidiaries (see Note 27).

Following is an overview showing the Group's performance with a breakdown by operating segments. Comparative amounts due to
organisational changes have not been restated.
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Corporate & Treasury & Subsidiaries,

1 January to 31 March 2019 Personal Business Investment Proprietary Cost The Bank eliminations & The Group

Banking Banking Banking Trading centres total adjustments total
Net INtEreSt INCOME .....c.ooiiiiiiiie e 2,573 2,700 2,092 604 (55) 7,914 238 8,152
Net fee and cOmmISSION INCOME ........cccuviiiiiiiiiiiiieiiee e 1,052 415 877 (69) 1 2,276 941 3,217
Other operating INCOME .........ooiuiiiiiee e e e - 5 107 251 1,166 1,529 33 1,562
Total operating income 3,625 3,120 3,076 786 1,112 11,719 1,212 12,931
Salaries and related eXPENSES .........ccoiuviiiiiiiiiiiie e (643) (496) (460) (67) (1,619) (3,285) (766) (4,051)
Other operating EXPENSES .......c.cuviiiiiiieiiiiie e (540) (282) (168) (58) (1,525) (2,573) (466) (3,039)
Contribution to the Depositors' and Investors' Guarantee Fund ..... (173) (107) (32) - - (312) - (312)
BANK TAX 11ttt (112) (84) (124) (556) (4) (880) - (880)
Net impairment on financial aSSets .........ccocceeiiieeiiiii e (224) (550) (101) (34) - (1909) (10) (919)
COSt AlIOCALION ....coiiviiiiiiiieeiie e (1,347) (700) (717) 62 2,702 - - -
Profit (loss) before tax 586 901 1,474 133 666 3,760 (30) 3,730
INCOME TAX EXPENSE ....eviiiiiiieiiiie ettt ettt e e e e neeea e (152) (234) (383) (192) (173) (1,134) (19) (1,153)
Profit (loss) for the period from continuing operations 434 667 1,091 (59) 493 2,626 (49) 2,577
Net segment revenue from external CUSIOMErS ...........ccceeevieeeenee. 3,987 3,461 4,558 (1,435) 1,148 11,719 1,212 12,931
Net segment revenue from other segments ...........cccocceeviieeinnnenn. (362) (341) (1,482) 2,221 (36) - - -
Fee and cOmMMISSION INCOME ........ocviiiiiiiiiiee e 1,374 418 915 11 1 2,719 2,292 5,011
Depreciation and amortiSation ............c.cceeevieeeiiiieiniie e (18) (72) (6) (1) (263) (1360) (37) (397)
At 31 March 2019
LOANS t0 CUSIOMIEIS ...covvviiiiiei e a e 305,652 228,266 335,441 217 - 869,576 3,954 873,530
OLNEI @SSELS ...ttt 2,529 3,540 4,633 283,841 11,916 306,459 25,239 331,698
Total segment assets 308,181 231,806 340,074 284,058 11,916 1,176,035 29,193 1,205,228
Deposits from CUSIOMETS ......ccvveiiieieeeciiiie et 273,836 171,677 113,589 55,825 - 614,927 (3,624) 611,303
Other liabilities 1,283 2,815 5,493 379,500 6,472 395,563 24,741 420,304
Total segment liabilities 275,119 174,492 119,082 435,325 6,472 1,010,490 21,117 1,031,607
P {FoTot= =To [ =T o 11 RSOOSR 26,649 39,178 58,495 40,672 5561 165,545 8,076 173,621
RiSK €XpoSUre amount ...........coooiiiiiiiieiiiiiee e 179,216 238,013 376,389 68,475 3,624 865,717 21,184 886,901

The individual segment balance sheet positions are with external customers, and exclude internal transactions thus explaining the differences in total assets and total liabilities and equity.
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Subsidiaries, eliminations & adjustments

1 January to 31 March 2019 islands- Allianz Other  Eliminations

Borgun hf. sjoair hf. island hf. subsidiaries & adjustments Total
Net interest INCOME ........coociiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 218 12 6 3 (1) 238
Net fee and commission iNCOME ...........ccccevvevernnenn. 358 252 338 (8) 1 941
Other operating INCOME ..........cccuveiiieiiiiiiiiee e 100 75 - 5 (147) 33
Total operating income 676 339 344 - (147) 1,212
Salaries and related eXpenses ..........cccceevrveeenenenn. (587) (137) (42) - - (766)
Other operating eXPENSES .........cccovvvirereeeeriiiieeeaeens (290) (47) (128) (31) 30 (466)
Net impairment on financial assets .............cccccecveenn. (12) - - - 2 (10)
Profit (loss) before tax (213) 155 174 (31) (115) (30)
INCOME taX EXPENSE .....eviiiiiiiiiiiieiiiee e 43 (32) (35) - 5 (19)
Profit (loss) for the period from cont. operations (170) 123 139 (31) (110) (49)
Net segment revenue from external customers ........ 884 378 343 - (393) 1,212
Net segment revenue from other segments .............. (208) (39) 1 - 246 -
Fee and commission iNCOME .........ccccovvieeiniieeniineenne 2,328 356 338 - (730) 2,292
Depreciation and amortisation ............cc.ccceevcvveencnneen. (37) - - - - (37)

At 31 March 2019

TOtal @SSELS ...veevieiiiieiee it 31,168 2,621 1,254 7,547 (13,397) 29,193
Total liabilities ..........ccoeoieiiii e, 24,590 223 388 10 (4,094) 21,117
Total €QUILY ..eoveeeiieciieeee e 6,578 2,398 866 7,537 (9,303) 8,076
Corporate & Proprietary Cost

1 January to 31 March 2018 Retail Investment Trading & centres &

Banking Banking Treasury Subsidiaries  eliminations Total
Net interest iNCOME ........cooceiivieiiiiiiee e 4,995 1,465 1,034 305 (59) 7,740
Net fee and commission income .... 1,423 737 (63) 679 2 2,778
Other operating iINCOME ..........cccvveeeeeeiiiiiiiee e 6 94 (150) (226) (4) (280)
Total operating income 6,424 2,296 821 758 (61) 10,238
Salaries and related eXpenses ..........ccccceeevveeeninnn. (1,201) (394) (40) (699) (1,592) (3,926)
Other operating eXpPeNnSes ..........ccccevvveerireeinieeennne. (883) (146) (103) (611) (1,181) (2,924)
Deposit Guarantee Fund .. (285) (4) (3) - - (292)
BaNnK t8X ...covveiiiiiiiiiiic e - - (785) - - (785)
Net loan impairment ...........occceeveeeiiiee e 354 (245) (29) 8 - 88
Cost AllOCALION ....ccovviiiiiiieeiic e (1,865) (648) 142 (14) 2,385 -
Profit (loss) before tax 2,544 859 3 (558) (449) 2,399
INCOME taX EXPENSE ......ccoviviiiieeiiiiiiiee e (661) (223) (373) 125 117 (1,015)
Profit (loss) for the period from cont. operations 1,883 636 (370) (433) (332) 1,384
Net segment revenue from external customers ........ 6,690 4,342 (1,644) 851 (1) 10,238
Net segment revenue from other segments .............. (266) (2,046) 2,465 (93) (60) -
Fee and commission iNCOME .........ccceeeeeeiiiiiieeeennnne 1,818 796 (48) 2,478 (771) 4,273
Depreciation and amortisation .. (68) (4 (1) (41) (100) (214)
At 31 March 2018
Loans to CUSIOMENS ..........ooceiiiiiieiiieeiiee e 485,916 283,750 146 6,307 30 776,149
OthEr @SSELS ..uvveviiieeie e siee et 3,869 1,220 258,013 57,029 (7,972) 312,159
Total segment assets 489,785 284,970 258,159 63,336 (7,942) 1,088,308
Deposits from CUStOMErS .......ccccvvveeviiiiiieee e, 495,072 17,345 66,824 396 (4,441) 575,196
Other liabilities ...........ccveviiiiieiicireeceee e 4,375 4,093 309,860 26,830 1,617 346,775
Total segment liabilities 499,447 21,438 376,684 27,226 (2,824) 921,971
Allocated QUILY ......eerveerieeeieie e 57,639 46,699 48,898 22,880 (9,779) 166,337
Risk exposure amount ..........cccooceerveieenenieesen e 409,401 316,520 29,781 42,478 (2,257) 795,923
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5. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

At 31 March 2019

Financial Statements

Mandatorily Held for Designated Fair value  Amortised Carrying
at FVTPL hedging as at FVTPL through OCI cost amount
Cash and balances with Central Bank ............cccccccoevviiiiiinnnnl. - - - - 129,039 129,039
Listed bonds and debt instruments ...... .. 78,671 - - - - 78,671
Unlisted bonds and debt instruments 2,138 - - - - 2,138
Listed shares and equity inStruments ...........ccccoevieevieeeiniieenne 9,933 - - - - 9,933
Unlisted shares and equity inStruments ...........ccccceevviiiieeeeennne 2,979 - - 2,356 - 5,335
DEIMVALIVES ..eviieiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e et e e e e e e sanaees 4,065 772 - - - 4,837
Loans to credit INSHtUtIONS ...........cvvviviiiiiiiiiieeiieieeeeeeeeeee e - - - - 65,145 65,145
LOANS 10 CUSTOMEIS ....vvvviiiiiiiiieieieieeereeeeeeeerereeeeereeereeeseeeeeenaneeees - - - - 873,530 873,530
Other financial @sSets .........ccccvvviiiiiii - - - - 19,650 19,650
Total financial assets 97,786 772 - 2,356 1,087,364 1,188,278
Deposits from CB and credit inStitutions ............ccoccceeevieeeiineen. - - - - 16,404 16,404
Deposits from customers ...........ccccevcvveennns - - - - 611,303 611,303
Derivative instruments and short positions .............cccccceeeieeenn. 7,325 - - - - 7,325
Debt issued and other borrowed funds ...........cccccevvvvvriveiivennnnn. - 41,911 71,186 - 211,938 325,035
Subordinated 08NS ..........cocciiiiie e - - - - 16,468 16,468
Other financial liabilities ..............evvvviviriiiiiiiiiieieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees - - - - 44,160 44,160
Total financial liabilities 7,325 41,911 71,186 - 900,273 1,020,695
At 31 December 2018
Mandatorily Held for Designated Fair value  Amortised Carrying
at FVTPL hedging as at FVTPL through OCI cost amount
Cash and balances with Central Bank ............ccccccovvviviiiinnn.. - - - - 135,056 135,056
Listed bonds and debt instruments ...........ccccccoeeeiiiieee e, 67,901 - - - - 67,901
Unlisted bonds and debt instruments ...........ccccccvvevvvevevevevennnnn. 1,514 - - - - 1,514
Listed shares and equity inStruments ...........ccccoevveeeiiieeniiieene 8,386 - - - - 8,386
Unlisted shares and equity inStruments ..........cccccceeveviiieeeeenene 2,846 - - 1,842 - 4,688
DEIVALIVES ...eiiieiiciiiiiiie ettt e e 3,923 627 - - - 4,550
Loans to credit iINSHtULtIONS ............vevvviiieieiiiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e - - - - 41,577 41,577
Loans to customers ............. . - - - - 846,599 846,599
Other financial assets - - - - 7,511 7,511
Total financial assets 84,570 627 - 1,842 1,030,743 1,117,782
Deposits from CB and credit institutions ... . - - - - 15,619 15,619
Deposits from CUSTOMENS ........cocviiiiiiieiiiic e - - - - 578,959 578,959
Derivative instruments and short positions ............cccccoeeiieeenn. 5,521 - - - - 5,521
Debt issued and other borrowed funds ...........ccccccvvvvvvvivnvevennnnn. - 40,714 68,154 - 192,108 300,976
Subordinated 10ans ... - - - - 16,216 16,216
Other financial liabilities ..............evvvveiiviiiiiiiiiiieeiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees - - - - 27,186 27,186
Total financial liabilities 5,521 40,714 68,154 - 830,088 944,477

islandsbanki hf. Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements first quarter 2019 17

Amounts are in ISK million



6.

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Fair value information for financial instruments

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The fair value of a financial instrument is the transaction price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Where a market price is not readily available, the Group applies valuation
techniques based on estimates and assumptions that are consistent with that which market participants would use in setting a price for the
financial instrument.

The table below shows financial instruments carried at fair value at 31 March 2019 categorised into three levels of fair value hierarchy that
reflect the type of inputs used in making the fair value measurements. The different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: Inputs that are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs other than the quoted prices included in Level 1, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Valuation techniques based on significant unobservable inputs, e.g. internal assumptions.

At 31 March 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bonds and debt iNSIIUMENTS ..........uviiiiiiiiiiie e s e e e eanaaeeeeas 78,670 - 2,139 80,809
Shares and equity instruments ... 9,842 41 5,385 15,268
Derivative INSITUMENES ......ceciiiiiiiie et e e e e s e e e e st e e e e e s eaeraeaeeaeanes - 4,837 - 4,837
Total financial assets 88,512 4,878 7,524 100,914
DENVALIVE INSIIUMENTS ....uutiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieietereresireseeeererererererereeeeereeeereereereteterearataeaaaaaeeeeaaaees - 7,325 - 7,325
Debt issued and other borrowed funds designated as at FVTPL .... 71,186 - - 71,186
Total financial liabilities 71,186 7,325 - 78,511
At 31 December 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bonds and debt iNSIIUMENTS ..........uviiiiiiiiiiiie e e e re e e e e s aaraeeeeas 67,901 - 1,514 69,415
Shares and equIty INSIIUMENTS ......ooiiiiiiiiie et e e e e e e e e e e e e eannnes 8,344 42 4,688 13,074
Derivative INSIIUMENES ......c.coiiiiiiie e e e e s e e e e et e e e e e e e arraeeeeaeanes - 4,550 - 4,550
Total financial assets 76,245 4,592 6,202 87,039
Short positions ............ - 5,521 - 5,521
Derivative instruments 68,154 - - 68,154
Total financial liabilities 68,154 5,521 - 73,675
Changes in Level 3 assets measured at fair value: Bonds and Shares and
debt equity
instruments instruments
Fair value at 1 January 2019 1,514 4,688
LU od g F= T T - 91
ST 1= PP PPUPPPPPPRPIRE - (52)
Net gain on financial instruments recognised iN Profit OF I0SS ...........ooiiiiiiiiii e 585 114
Net gain on financial instruments recognised in other comprenensive INCOME ............oocuiiiiiiiiniiiiiee e - 514
(@1 1= SR 40 30
Fair value at 31 March 2019 2,139 5,385
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6. Contd
Bonds and Shares and
debt equity
instruments instruments
Fair value at 1 JANUAIY 2018 ........oooiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e ettt e e e e oottt e e e e s e et et e e e e e e s abe et e e e e e aabbbeeeeeeeaabbbeeeaeeaannbbeeaeeeannbnneas 1,828 3,373
PUICRASES ...ttt oo bt ekt e e b bt e oAb bt e £k bt e e s bt eea b bt e oo a bt e e e a bt e e e bb e e e e b e e e anbe e neee 8 790
Net loss on financial instruments recognised iN Profit OF 0SS .........coiiiiiiiiiii i (249) (135)
Net gain on financial instruments recognised in other comprehensive income .. - 610
TranSfErs frOM LEVEI 1 OF 2 .. ...ttt ettt e e e ettt e e e oo bt e et e e e e e e abb b et e e e e e aabbbe e e e e e e nnbeeeaeeeannnbneeas - 50
(@1 3= SRR P P OT PR OTPPRP (73) -
Fair value at 31 December 2018 1,514 4,688

The responsibility for the valuation of the fair value of financial instruments lies with the relevant business units. Each quarter, the business
units present a valuation report to the Investment Committee for approval. The report and its assumptions are reviewed by Risk
Management.

Where applicable, fair values are determined using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. In other cases, where
there is no active market, the fair value is estimated using valuation techniques such as net present value and discounted cash flow models;
comparison with similar instruments for which observable market data exists; net asset value (NAV) for investment fund units or expected
recovery for distressed bonds. These valuation techniques are based on various assumptions and inputs such as risk-free rate, expected
revenue growth and credit and liquidity spreads. In some cases, where significant inputs into these models are not observable, expert
judgement and estimation for these inputs are required.

At the end of each reporting period the Group determines whether transfers have occured between levels in the hierarchy, by reassessing
categorisation based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Level 1: Fair value established from quoted market prices.
Level 1 financial assets and financial liabilities contain actively traded bonds and equities that are listed either domestically or abroad.

Level 2: Fair value established using valuation techniques with observable market information.

Level 2 assets and liabilities contain domestic bonds, equities as well as derivatives. For interest rate derivatives contracts such as interest
rate swaps (IRS) and cross-currency interest rate swaps (CIRS) the Group calculates the net present value of estimated future cash flows
based on yield curves with key inputs such as interest swap rates and forward-rate agreements (FRAs) rates. Foreign-currency forwards and
foreign-currency swaps are valued using the FX spot rate adjusted for forward pricing points that can be obtained from market sources.
These products are classified as Level 2. Bond forwards and equity forwards are also classified as Level 2 as they are valued using standard
models with key inputs observed from stock prices, estimated dividend rates and funding rates.

Level 3: Fair value established using valuation techniques using significant unobservable market information.

Level 3 assets contain primarily unlisted and illiquid equities and bonds. Unlisted equities and bonds are initially recorded at their transaction
price but are revalued each quarter based on the models as described above. At 31 March 2019 the Group's Level 3 equities amounted to
ISK 5,385 million. These include shares in five professional investment funds and investment companies investing in unlisted equities and
specialised investments in Iceland totalling ISK 1,696 million. The Group receives information from fund managers which use valuation
models for the valuation of these equities. Full access to information of all components in these valuation models is unavailable to the Group
and is therefore no basis for assumptions for sensitivity analysis.

The Group holds Series C preferred shares in Visa Inc., amounting to ISK 2,356 million, which are subject to selling restrictions for a period
of up to 9 years and under certain conditions may have to be recalled. The fair value of the preferred shares is closely linked to the market
value of Visa Inc. at NYSE stock exchange, written down by 30% due to uncertainty of the final number of shares and marketability.

For other Level 3 equities, changes in components for valuation will have minimal impact on the Group's income statement.
The Group's Level 3 bonds amounted to ISK 2,139 million. The majority of the amount in Level 3 bonds is estimated by discounting cash flow

where the yield is the contractual currency's base rate with a premium that is decided by expert judgement on projected risk and financing
cost.

islandsbanki hf. Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements first quarter 2019 19 Amounts are in ISK million



Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

7. Financial instruments not carried at fair value

Assets

The fair value of “Loans to customers” may differ from their net carrying amount because the interest rates they carry may not reflect the
interest rates that similar new loans would carry. The fair value is estimated by subtracting from or adding to the net carrying amount of the
loans the discounted interest rate difference calculated from the reporting date until the next interest reset or maturity, whichever comes first.
Since the interest rate difference is estimated using internal models these assets are classified as Level 3.

For “Cash and balances with Central Bank”, “Loans to credit institutions” and “Other financial assets” the fair value is adequately
approximated by the carrying amount as they are short-term in nature. They are thus classified as Level 2.

Liabilities

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature, such as a demand deposit, is not less than the amount payable on demand,
discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid. Most deposits are on demand or carry floating interest rates and
as such their carrying amount is considered a good approximation of their fair value. The fair value for longer term fixed rate deposits is
calculated with a duration approach, using the difference in each liability's current interest rate from the rate that a similar deposit would carry
today. All deposits are classified as Level 2 based on the use of observable market interest rates to estimate the fair value.

Observed market value is used for the fair value of "Debt issued and other borrowed funds" where it is available. Issued bonds and bills with
quoted market prices are classified as Level 1. If there is no quoted market price the fair value of the debt is valued in the same manner as
deposits if it carries a fixed rate. If the debt carries a floating rate its fair value is estimated by comparing the margin with the Group's current
funding premium on similar debt. These liabilities are classified as Level 2. The funding premium is based on the interest margin in the
Group's issued papers including covered bonds, commercial papers as well as foreign currency denominated bonds.

Other financial liabilities mainly include unsettled securities transactions and liabilities to retailers for credit card provisions and they are
classified as Level 2 since their value is not observable from active market prices. Due to the short-term nature of these liabilities their
carrying amount is considered a good approximation of their fair value.

The following tables show the fair value measurement and classification of the Group's assets and liabilities not carried at fair value. The
different levels are defined in Note 6.

At 31 March 2019 Total fair Carrying

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value amount
Cash and balances with Central Bank ............cccccceeeviiiiiieeeiiiiiiiee e - 129,039 - 129,039 129,039
Loans to credit INSHEULIONS ...........uvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeereee e ee e eeeees - 65,145 - 65,145 65,145
Loans to customers ..... - - 875,664 875,664 873,530
Other financial assets - 19,650 - 19,650 19,650
Total financial assets - 213,834 875,664 1,089,498 1,087,364
Deposits from Central Bank and credit institutions ............ccccceevvevinciieenns - 16,422 - 16,422 16,404
Deposits from CUSTOMETS .......coiiiiiiiiiiee ittt - 611,554 - 611,554 611,303
Debt issued and other borrowed funds ..........ccccoeeiiiiiiis 155,616 104,452 - 260,068 253,849
Subordinated 10aNS .........oooiiiiii e ————— 16,418 - - 16,418 16,468
Other financial liabilities .............evvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee - 44,160 - 44,160 44,160
Total financial liabilities 172,034 776,588 - 948,622 942,184
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7. Contd

At 31 December 2018 Total fair Carrying

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value amount
Cash and balances with Central Bank ..............cccvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeees - 135,056 - 135,056 135,056
Loans to credit iNSHIULIONS ..........uvviee e - 41,577 - 41,577 41,577
LOANS 10 CUSTOMIEIS ..oiviviiieiiiiiiiiiiie ettt et e e ea et e e e e e e ebaa s - - 848,751 848,751 846,599
Other fiNANCIAl ASSELS ...occciiiiiiiiee e - 7,511 - 7,511 7,511
Total financial assets - 184,144 848,751 1,032,895 1,030,743
Deposits from Central Bank and credit institutions ............ccoccoceveieiiiinenn. - 15,633 - 15,633 15,619
Deposits from CUSTOMETS ........ooiiiieiiiiie ittt - 579,232 - 579,232 578,959
Debt issued and other borrowed funds .........ccccooeiiiiiiiiiiiiis 151,767 84,476 - 236,243 232,822
Subordinated loans ........ 16,167 - - 16,167 16,216
Other financial liabilities - 27,186 - 27,186 27,186
Total financial liabilities 167,934 706,527 - 874,461 870,802

8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The tables below show reconciliation to the net amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are subject

enforceable master netting agreements and similar agreements.

Amounts not set off but subject to master

to offsetting,

] ) Financial assets subject to netting arrangements and similar
Financial assets netting arrangements agreements
Net amount after ~ Assets outside
Financial Netting Financial consideration of the scope of Total financial

assets with Cash instruments potential effect of offsetting assets

before  financial Net financial Financial collateral collateral netting disclosure recognised in the
At 31 March 2019 netting liabilities assets liabilities received received arrangements requirements balance sheet
Derivatives .........cccceviieeiieeennnnee. 4,837 - 4,837  (1,651) (1,375) (193) 1,618 - 4,837
Total assets 4,837 - 4,837  (1,651) (1,375) (193) 1,618 - 4,837
At 31 December 2018
Reverse repurchase agreements 153 - 153 - - - 153 - 153
Derivatives ........cooccveeeeeeiniciiiennn. 4,550 - 4,550 (1,655) (1,383) (698) 814 - 4,550
Total assets 4,703 - 4,703  (1,655) (1,383) (698) 967 - 4,703

Amounts not set off but subject to master

Financial liabilities subject to netting arrangements and similar
Financial liabilities netting arrangements agreements
Liabilities
Net amount after outside the
Financial Netting Financial consideration of scope of Total financial
liabilities with Cash instruments potential effect of offsetting liabilities
before  financial Net financial Financial collateral collateral netting disclosure recognised in the
At 31 March 2019 netting assets liabilities assets pledged pledged arrangements requirements balance sheet
Derivative instruments and
short positions ..............cccoceeeeen.. 7,325 - 7,325  (1,651) (562) - 5,112 - 7,325
At 31 December 2018
Derivative instruments and
short positions ...........cccocvvvevinen. 5,521 - 5521  (1,655) (85) - 3,781 - 5,521
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9. Quarterly statements

2019 2018 2018 2018 2018

Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1

Net INtereSt INCOME ........oeiiiiiiieiere e 8,152 8,294 8,301 7,602 7,740
Net fee and commission income ... 3,217 3,478 2,939 3,032 2,778
Net financial INCOME (EXPENSE) .......eieiiiieiiiieeiiiee et 448 (637) (420) 378 (283)
Net foreign exchange (I0SS) QaiNn ..........oocuviiiieiiiiiiiiee e (30) 76 (8) (57) (10)
Other operating iNCOME .......ocuuiiiiiiie ittt 1,144 120 64 1,587 13
Salaries and related EXPENSES .......ccueviiiieiiiiiieie et (4,051) (4,047) (3,501) (4,026) (3,926)
Other operating EXPENSES .......ccuuiiiiiiieiiiie ettt (3,039) (3,418) (2,962) (2,846) (2,924)
Contribution to the Depositors' and Investors' Guarantee Fund ................. (312) (299) (295) (287) (292)
BANK TAX 111ttt (880) (740) (944) (812) (785)
Net impairment on financial aSSets ..........cccocvviiiiiiiiiic i (919) (297) (53) 1,846 88
Profit DEOrE taX ....vveiuieiiie it 3,730 2,530 3,121 6,417 2,399
Income tax expense (1,153) (1,118) (1,136) (1,465) (1,015)
Profit for the period from continuing operations .............ccccceeeeeiiiieieneeeiinne 2,577 1,412 1,985 4,952 1,384
Profit (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income tax ...........c......... 12 (8) 126 81 713
Profit for the period 2,589 1,404 2,111 5,033 2,097

10. Net interest income

2019 2018

1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3

Cash and balances With Central BAnK ............c.ouviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeee e 1,366 2,161
[T R L= T g (o] (Y=o oo ) AP PR O TPPR 13,273 12,353
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profit Or I0SS ..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiii 568 431
Other assets 20 50
Total interest income 15,227 14,995
Deposits from credit institutions and Central Bank ............ccccceiiriiiiiiiieiiiinicenieeces (107) (97)
DepOSitS frOM CUSTOMETS .......iiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e as (4,043) (4,095)
Debt issued and other borrowed funds at fair value through profit or loss . (180) (288)
Debt issued and other borrowed funds at amortised COSt ..........ccceevvvieiiiiiiiiiee i, (2,223) (2,050)

SUDOIAINALET JOBNS ......eeiiiiiiiiiiie ettt (80) (34)

Other INTErESt EXPENSE™ ... ..eiiiiiii ittt et e et e et ee s anb e e s baeesabeeeeanes (442) (691)
Total interest expense (7,075) (7,255)
Net interest income 8,152 7,740

*Thereof is lease liabilities' interest expense amounting to ISK 24 million.
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11. Net fee and commission income

2019 2018
1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3
ASSEE MANAGEIMENT ...t ettt bttt ettt b ettt sttt e e ettt e et et et ettt e et e et e e eenenenenens 548 475
Investment banking @nd BIrOKEIAGE ...........oiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e et e et e et e e st e eneee 530 496
PaYMENT PrOCESSING ...iuiiitieiie ettt e e ettt e e e ettt e e e e e ttb et e e e e e s hb bttt e e e e aaabee e e e e e eaabb b et e e e e e aasbbe e e e e e annbeeeeeeeannbbnbeaaeeaanes 2,970 2,554
[T R T o le (U= 1= g1 (=TT TSP OPPPPPPRN 378 340
Other fee and commission income 585 408
Total fee and commission income 5,011 4,273
121 (0] T = o [ R PSPPSR PPTOPPRPN (69) (68)
Clearing and SELIEMENT .......co ittt e ettt e et e bt e e (1,703) (1,424)
Other fee and COMMISSION EXPEINSE ......cciuiieiiiiee ittt et eab et e ettt e et ee e e e bb e e e aa bt e e aabe e e e bt ee e sabeeeaabeeeeasbeeesnbeeeabeeeenne (22) (3)
Total fee and commission expense (1,794) (1,495)
Net fee and commission income 3,217 2,778
Fee and commission income by segment is disclosed in Note 4.
12. Net financial income (expense)
2019 2018
1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3
Net gain on financial assets and liabilities mandatorily at FVTPL .......cocciiiiiiiiiiiieci e 504 112
Net loss on financial liabilities designated @s At FVTPL ........ooiiiiiiiiiieiiiie ettt e snnee e (44) (364)
Net loss on fair value hedges (12) (31)
Net financial income (expense) 448 (283)
13. Net foreign exchange loss
2019 2018
1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3
Cash and balances With CeNtral BANK ..........c..coiiiiiiiiiieiiie ettt e et e st e e e tr e e e anbeeesnbeeeannnes 9 (60)
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss (199) (1,542)
[T R L= T g (o] (Y=o oo ) AP PR O TPPR 8,316 (6,720)
OLNEI BSSELS ... ee ittt ettt e oo a e e bt e e bttt e oo ket e a bt e e e et e et e et 181 (78)
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) for assets 8,307 (8,400)
(BT o To S | OO O TP P PP PT PR PPPR ORI (3,614) 3,086
Debt issued and other borrowed funds designated as at FVTPL ......cooiiiiiiiiiiiiee e (2,188) 2,404
Debt issued and other borrowed funds at amortised cost .... (2,200) 2,117
510 oe] fo 1 aF=1C=To I (o =T OO TSP PP PP PPPPN (246) 669
OhEr TADIITIES ...ttt ekttt e a et e ea et oo ettt e ettt e nab et e s bt e e b et e nnneeabeeeenae (89) 114
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain for liabilities (8,337) 8,390
Net foreign exchange loss (30) (10)
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14.

15.

16.

17.

Other operating income
2019 2018
1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3
Share of 10ss 0Of associates, NEt Of INCOME TAX ......uviiiiiiiiiiii e e e et e e e e e bbb e e e e e e e annees - (32)
(=T T U (=TS SO P PO USSP PPPPTN 20 19
RENLAIINCOME ...ttt e e bbbt s et e s ket e e bbbt e s et e s ba e e e bb e e e s ba e e s abeeeeannes 10 9
Legal diSPULE SETHEMENT® ... ... ittt e et b et e be e e e e sb et e e b bt e e bt e e e enbb e e e anbeeeaneeeeane 1,103 -
Other net operating income 11 17
Other operating income 1,144 13

*In February 2019 islandsbanki and Old Byr reached an agreement on the settlement of the dispute deriving from the acquisition of Byr

savings bank in 2011.

Salaries and related expenses
2019 2018
1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3
STz 1= T[T TSP P PP PRPPT T 3,144 3,020
Contributions t0 PENSION FUNGAS .......oiiiiiiiiiii e e e et e et e e et e e steeeeaes 458 440
Social security charges and financial ACHVItIES TaX* ..........uiiiiiiiiiiii e bre e e sbee s 422 433
(O 13- ST T T OO P TP TSP PP PO PR PP PP PPPPPPP 27 33
Salaries and related expenses 4,051 3,926
*Financial activities tax calculated on salaries is 5.5% (2018: 5.5%).
Other operating expenses
2019 2018
1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3
PrOfESSIONAI SEIVICES ... ittt et a e e s s e s s e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeaeaeaeaeaeaeaeaaaaaaaaaaaaas 1,262 1,324
RE&AI €SLAE AN FIXIUIES ....eiiiiieii ettt ettt b e ser e et e e it e n e e e ke e e et e nneeeeneenteenaneanne 764 872
Depreciation and @mMOITISALION ............ciiiiiiiiiii ettt e ettt e e et e ae e e aeb e e e et e e 397 214
Other adMINISITAtIVE EXPENSES ... ..eiiiiiiieiiiie ittt ettt e e ettt e et et e e bb e e e e bb e e e abeeeeasbeeeasbbeeeambeeeanbeeeesbeeesnbeeeanteeaanns 616 514
Other operating expenses 3,039 2,924
Net impairment on financial assets
2019 2018
1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3
Allowance for expected credit losses, on-balance sheet ItemMS* ... (1920) 53
Allowance for expected credit losses, off-balance sheet itemS ..........c..eiiiiiii e 7 35
Changes of provision du@ t0 COUTt FUINGS .......iiiiiiiiiiiie ittt ene e b e (6) -
Net impairment on financial assets (919) 88

*The main reasons for the additional allowance are: a less favourable economic environment (ISK 400 million), a change in the relative

weighting of economic forecasts (ISK 250 million) and an unfavourable ruling in a court case (ISK 190 million).
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18.

19.

20.

Income tax expense

Income tax is recognised based on applicable tax rates and tax laws. The income tax rate for legal entities in 2019 is 20% (2018: 20%).
Special financial activities tax is calculated as 6% of taxable profits exceeding ISK 1 billion in accordance with the Act on Financial Activities
Tax no. 165/2011. The effective income tax rate in the Group's income statement for the first quarter of 2019 is 30.9% (2018: 42.2%).

2019 2018
1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3
Current tax expense excluding diSCONtINUEd OPETALIONS .........cciuiiiiiiieiiiie ettt et e et e st e e sbe e e abaeeeaes 1,057 1,195
Special fINANCIAL ACTIVILIES 18X ... etiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e e e e sttt e e e s bbb e e e e e e e abbb e e e e e e sbnbaeeeeeeansnteeeas 237 297
Difference in prior year's calculated income tax ... . (2) 1
Changes in temporary differences due to deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities ............ccccccovviiniiieninnne (139) (478)
Income tax recognised in the income statement 1,153 1,015
2019 2018
1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3
Profit DEFOrE TAX ..vvvvviiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee e 3,730 2,399
20% income tax calculated on the profit of the period ............ccccceiiiiiiiii, 746 20.0% 480 20.0%
Special financCial ACHVITIES TAX ......eieiiiiiiiiiieiiii e 237 6.3% 297 12.4%
(Income) expenses NOt SUDJECT T0 TAX ...vviivvieiiiiiiiiiie et (31) (0.8%) 25 1.0%
NON-AedUCEIDIE EXPENSES ...ttt 177 4.7% 157 6.5%
Other diffErENCES .....ooiiiiiii e 24 0.7% 56 2.3%
Effective income tax expense 1,153 30.9% 1,015 42.2%
The Bank is taxed jointly with its subsidiary Islandssjédir hf.
Profit from discontinued operations
2019 2018
1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3
Net (loss) profit from sales of forecloSed MOMGAGES ........c.uiiiiiiiiiiiii et (1) 40
Net share of profit from disposal groups held for SAlE .............ooiiiiiiiiiiii e 13 673
Profit from discontinued operations, net of income tax 12 713

Earnings per share
Discontinued operations
Excluded Included
2019 2018 2019 2018
1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3 1.1-31.3
Profit attributable to shareholders of the BanK .............coovvvvviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 2,639 1,473 2,651 2,186
Weighted average number of outstanding Shares ............ccccoviiiiiiiiiii e 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Basic earnings per share 0.26 0.15 0.27 0.22

The Group's basic and diluted earnings per share are equal as the Group has not issued any options, warrants, convertables, or other
potential sources of dilution (2018: none).
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21. Cash and balances with Central Bank
31.3.2019 31.12.2018

(@S TS] o 1o]  T  T- LgTo  OTTO RPN PR 4,088 3,095
Balances With CeNtral BANK ...........cc.ioiiiiiiiii et e st e e s e e e 108,317 114,849
Balances with Central Bank assets subject to special reStriCtONS® ............coiiiiiiiiiieiiiie e 2,894 3,049
Included in cash and cash equivalents 115,299 120,993
Mandatory reserve deposits With Central BANK ...............ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii et e e 13,740 14,063
Cash and balances with Central Bank 129,039 135,056

*Balances as defined in Act no. 37/2016 on the treatment of krdna-denominated assets subject to special restrictions and rules no. 490/2016
on special reserve requirements for new foreign currency inflows.

22. Derivative instruments and short positions

Notional Notional
values values
At 31 March 2019 related to related to
Assets assets  Liabilities liabilities
INEEIESTE FALE SWAPS ... ieieie ittt ettt nnnene e 1,330 100,705 3,396 141,935
CroSS-CUITENCY INTETESE FALE SWAPS ....eiiiuieieiiiiieiiieeiieeearitee et e e sbee e stee e e sbe e e s sbaeeasneeeeans 2,151 45,465 1,808 61,016
EQUILY FOMWAIS ..eoeiiiiiiiiie et e e et e e e e s e e e e e e annes 365 4,240 184 2,986
Foreign exchange fOrWATAS ...........cocuiiiiiiieiiiie et 521 10,943 50 4,047
FOreign EXChanQge SWAPS .....ceiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e ettt e e e st e e e e s et ee e e e s e nte e e e e e e aneneeeeeas 467 22,136 1,273 41,160
BONA FONWAIAS .....vveiieeciiiieee et e e et e e e e e et e e e e e e s enba e e e e e e ennnrnaeaeeaas 3 1,070 614 24,320
Derivatives 4,837 184,559 7,325 275,464
At 31 December 2018
INEEIEST FALE SWAPS ...eeeeiiiiiiiiiee e e ettt e e e ettt e e e ettt e e e e et e e e e e e e st b et e e e e snbb e e e e e e e anneneeas 1,037 102,429 3,422 134,010
Cross-currency interest rate swaps .. 1,821 69,691 1,184 28,309
EQUILY FOTWAITS ...ttt ettt et e e e b e e snbe e e anteee s 419 4,596 78 1,195
Foreign exchange fOrWAITS ..........ooiiiiiiiiiie it e e e e e e e e e e s nnnnes 359 9,242 196 3,869
FOreign €XChange SWAPS .......c.ueiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e et e e e e e nbe e e e 875 35,726 440 13,373
BONG FOMWAITS ...ttt e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeaeaaaeaeaeas 39 3,511 201 19,993
Derivatives 4,550 225,195 5,521 200,749

The Group uses derivatives to hedge currency exposure, interest rate risk in the banking book as well as inflation risk. The Group carries
relatively low indirect exposure due to margin trading with clients and the Group holds collaterals for possible losses. Other derivatives in the
Group held for trading or for other purposes are insignificant.

The Group applies hedge accounting only with respect to certain EUR denominated interest rate swaps, whereby the Group pays floating rate
interest and receives fixed rate interest. The interest rate swaps are hedging the exposure of changes in the fair value of certain fixed-rate
EUR denominated bonds (see Note 33) arising from changes in interest rates. The Group applies fair value hedge accounting to the hedging
relationships. At the end of the first quarter 2019 the total fair value of the interest rate swaps was positive and amounted to ISK 772 million
and their total notional amount was I1SK 41,250 million.
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23. Loans to credit institutions
31.3.2019 31.12.2018

Money market loans 40,711 16,314
[2F 10 Q= Tol oo 10 o (=TT OT OO PPPPRPTPTPINE 24,434 25,259
(0710 T=T gl (o - 1 TSSO U PP UPPPTRPPPRN - 4
Loans to credit institutions 65,145 41,577
24. Loans to customers
Net
At 31 March 2019 Gross carrying amount ECL allowance carrying
Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 amount
INAIVIAUAIS ... 313,315 5,740 7,755 (1,202) (243) (1,120) 324,245
Commerce and SEIVICES ........ceviveeeiiireeeiieeenieeeaens 123,726 4,770 4,138 (745) (285) (1,279) 130,325
Construction e 29,977 1,499 335 (256) (44) (45) 31,466
ENEIGY oo 6,198 740 - (23) (4) - 6,911
Financial ServiCes .........ccccccceiiiiiie, 2,583 - - (8) - - 2,575
Industrial and transportation ..............ccceevveeeniieeennns 67,921 10,717 3,877 (381) (80) (1,068) 80,986
Investment COMPANIES ........ccoeeviiiiiieieeniiiiiieee s 19,397 5,413 391 (226) (117) (201) 24,657
Public sector and non-profit organisations .............. 11,486 12 46 (11) (1) (4) 11,528
REAI ESLAE ... 146,423 1,214 2,149 (666) (61) (294) 148,765
SeAf00d ..o 102,478 9,615 456 (131) (133) (213) 112,072
Loans to customers 823,504 39,720 19,147 (3,649) (968) (4,224) 873,530
At 31 December 2018
INAIVIAUAIS ... 308,870 5,901 6,860 (1,130) (256) (855) 319,390
Commerce and SEIVICES ........eeevveeeiireeaiieeenieeeaans 118,563 4,981 3,358 (643) (179) (1,838) 124,242
CONSLIUCLION ...t 25,958 3,301 298 (196) (247) (19) 29,095
Energy ....ccccoeevveennn e 6,145 740 - (20) (7) - 6,858
Financial ServiCes .........ccccccceeiiiiiieeeeee, 1,708 - - (4) - - 1,704
Industrial and transportation ..............ccceevveeeniieennns 74,338 2,625 3,800 (398) (53) (488) 79,824
Investment COMPANIES ........ccoeevviiveiieeeeiiiiiieee e 18,709 5,128 398 (217) (103) (116) 23,799
Public sector and non-profit organisations .............. 12,054 22 30 (18) - (1) 12,087
REAI ESLAE ... 139,073 2,588 2,087 (528) (154) (181) 142,885
SeAf00d ..o 103,014 3,616 479 (123) (80) (191) 106,715
Loans to customers 808,432 28,902 17,310 (3,277) (1,079) (3,689) 846,599
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25. Expected credit loss

Loans to customers

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
At 1 JANUANY 2019 ..o e 3,277 1,079 3,689 8,045
TraNSTEr 10 SEAGE L ...eeiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt ettt e e e e e b et e e e e e s bt e e e e e e arareen 602 (493) (109) -
TranSfEr 10 STAGE 2 .....vieiiiiie ettt (706) 894 (188) -
TraNSTEr 10 SLAGE 3 ...eeeiieiiiiiiiie ettt s e e e e e ettt e e e e s e bt e e e e e e ararees (38) (137) 175 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance (including changes in models) ...........c.ccccovenee. 62 (385) 929 606
New financial assets originated or purchased .. 529 57 42 628
Derecognitions and MALUILIES .........cooiuiiiiirieiiiie ettt (77) (47) (281) (405)
WWIIEE-OFFS ittt - - (191) (191)
Recoveries of amounts previously written off ... - - 41 41
FOreign @XCRANGE ........viiiiiiiii et - - 38 38
UNWINAING OF INTEIESES ....viiiiiiie ettt - - 79 79
At 31 March 2019 3,649 968 4,224 8,841
AL L JANUANY 2018 ...ttt et 2,701 1,244 9,151 13,096
Transfer 10 STAGE 1 .. ..viiiiiiiieiie ettt et 2,652 (1,733) (919) -
TranSfEr 10 STAGE 2 .....viiiiiiiiie e (1,053) 2,317 (1,264) -
Transfer 10 STAGE 3 .. ..uiiiiiiii ettt bb e (199) (1,167) 1,266 -
Net remeasurement Of 0SS @llOWANCE ...........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e (2,073) 126 (429) (2,376)
New financial assets originated or pUrChased ..............ccocueeeiiiiiiiiie e 1,474 478 711 2,663
Derecognitions and MALUILIES ..........coiouiiiiiiiiiiiiii it (323) (185) (618) (1,126)
L1 (SR o) 1 PSP UUPPUPPRN (2) (1) (5,254) (5,257)
Recoveries of amounts previously Written Off ..........ccoccvviiiiiii - - 416 416
FOreign @XCRANGE ....c..eiiiiiiie ettt ba e snaee e - - 87 87
UNWINAiNG OF INEEIESES .....eiiiiiiii e e - - 542 542
At 31 December 2018 3,277 1,079 3,689 8,045
Total expected credit loss

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Cash and balances with Central Bank .............ccocviiiiiiiiiiiciiicc e 61 - - 61
Loans to Credit INSHEULIONS .........ccciiiiieiecre e 81 - - 81
o= T R (o I o0 ] (0] 1 = £ O UUUPPUPPPPN 3,649 968 4,224 8,841
Other fINANCIAT BSSELS ......c..viiriiiiiii et 5 2 88 95
Off-balance sheet loan commitments and financial guarantees ............ccccceceervieeennnen. 431 40 159 630
At 31 March 2019 4,227 1,010 4,471 9,708
Cash and balances with Central Bank ..............cccccciiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 48 - - 48
Loans to credit iINSHIULIONS .........cviiiiiiie e 62 - - 62
LOANS 0 CUSLOIMENS ...ttt et 3,277 1,079 3,689 8,045
Other financial assets 5 3 83 91
Off-balance sheet loan commitments and financial guarantees 410 142 84 636
At 31 December 2018 3,802 1,224 3,856 8,882

islandsbanki hf. Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements first quarter 2019 28 Amounts are in ISK million



Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

26. Investments in associates

2019 2018

1.1-31.3 1.1-31.12

Investments in associates at the beginning Of the YEAI ... 682 704
AddItioNS AUINNG the PEIIOM .......eeiiiiii ettt et b bt e e bttt e e bb e e e abb e e e esbe e e e anb e e e snbeeesnnneas - 86
SaleS Of SNArES IN ASSOCIALES ........eiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt e e e e et b et e e e e ek bttt e e e e e e abbeeeaeeeaanbbbeeeeeseanbbbeeeaeeaannnes - (39)
Transfer from assOCiates t0 SUDSIIAIES ........coouuiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e et e e tnee e - (80)
SNAIE OF FESUILS ...ttt e et a e e e bbbt e et b e e e s e e e s b et e et bt e e nb et e sb e e e e aaneas - 29
[D1Y]Te (=T g To K38 o T= Vo EO PSPV TPPPRPPP - (18)
Investments in associates 682 682

27. Investments in subsidiaries

31.3.2019 31.12.2018

Borgun hf., a payment acquirer and issuing processor, Armdli 30, 108 ReyKjavik ...........c..cccccveueeen.... Iceland 63.5% 63.5%
B-Payment Group Szolgaltat6 Zrt., a payment processing company, H-1132 Budapest ............... Hungary 100% 100%
{slandssj6air hf., an investment fund management company, Hagasmari 3, 201 Képavogur ............. Iceland 100% 100%
Hringur-eignarhaldsfélag ehf., a holding company, Dalshraun 3, 220 Hafnarfjorour ............cc.cccevenee. Iceland 100% 100%
Allianz island hf., an insurance agent, Dalshraun 3, 220 Hafnarfjéraur Iceland 100% 100%
In addition islandsbanki has control over 13 other non-significant subsidiaries.
28. Property and equipment
At 31 March 2019 Right-of-use Fixtures,
Land and assets: equipment
Historical cost buildings  Properties & vehicles Total
Balance at the beginning of the Year ..ot 4,054 - 3,984 8,038
Impact of adopting IFRS 16, SEE NOE 3 ... ..oiiiiiiiiiiiie e - 4,489 - 4,489
Additions during the PEHOM .........eiiiiiiiiiii e 5 - 116 121
Disposals and write-offs during the period .............ccccviiiiiiiiii e - - (43) (43)
REMEASUIEMENT ...t - 34 - 34
Total 4,059 4,523 4,057 12,639
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at the beginning of the Year ..o (1,402) - (1,365) (2,767)
Depreciation during the Period ............cooiiiiiiiiiiii e (8) (104) (129) (241)
Disposals and write-offs during the period .. - - 11 11
Total (1,410) (104) (1,483) (2,997)
Carrying amount 2,649 4,419 2,574 9,642
DEPIECIALION TALES .....eiiitiieiieie ettt ettt e e nb e inee e 0-2% 8-33% 8-33%
Official real estate value of [and and DUIIJINGS ........ooeeiiiiiii e e e et e e e e e iabe e e e e e s abe e e e e e e e annnees 3,747
INSUrANCE ValUE OFf DUIAINGS ... ..eeiiiie ettt e et e e e e e ettt e e e e e s s et e e e e e e e s ss et eeee e e nsteeeaeeaentsaeeeeeeassssaneeeeesnnnnneeeeeeannnes 4,889
Insurance value of fixtures, equIPMENt AN VENICIES ........oouiiiiiii et e e e et e e e e e et b e e e e e e e annnneeeeas 3,515
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28. Cont'd

At 31 December 2018

Fixtures,
Land and equipment
Historical cost buildings & vehicles Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,722 4,683 10,405
AdditioNS AUING the YA ...t e e e e et e e e e e e atbb e e e e e e e sasbbeeeaeeaas 15 829 844
Disposals and write-0ffs during the YA ...........coouiiiiiiiii e (1,683) (1,528) (3,211)
Total 4,054 3,984 8,038
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at the beginning Of the YEAI ..........cciiiiiiiii e (1,330) (1,947) (3,277)
Depreciation dUriNg the YEAT ........ciiiiiiiiiie ittt ettt et e e e e e e snbe e e anbeee e (72) (496) (568)
Disposals and write-0ffs during the YEar ...........coccviiiiiiiii e - 1,078 1,078
Total (1,402) (1,365) (2,767)
Carrying amount 2,652 2,619 5,271
DEPIECIALION FALES .....eiiiitiiiiiii ettt ettt e st e e et e st e sttt e et e s bae e e abeeeeans 0-2% 8-33%
Official real estate value of BUIldiNGS AN [aNG ........co.uiiiiii et e e e e s be e et e e e bb e e e sabeeeanbeeeeas 3,747
INSUrANCE VAIUE OF DUIIINGS ....coiiiiiiiiiie etttk e e a bt e bt e e bbb e e e bt e e bbb e e e et e e e s e e e nabe e e anenes 4,889
Insurance value of fixtures, equIPMENt AN VENICIES .........oooiiiiiiiiii et e ettt eeateee s 3,500
29. Other assets
31.3.2019 31.12.2018
RECEIVADIES ...ttt h e bttt e s bt e et R et R e Rt et e et e e re s 8,322 5,793
Unsettled SECUNTIES trANSACHONS ........uuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieee ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaeaaeaas 10,443 1,033
ACCIUAIS ..o 285 289
Prepaid expenses 611 395
DEFEITEO TAX BSSEES ....veeieeririetee ettt ettt ettt e s bt sen e et e e et e st e b et e st e b e e e ee e e bt e ne e e R et e e e e e n e ne e 292 215
OLNEE BSSELS ...ttt ettt oo a et e bt e bbbt ookt e e e a e e e et e et e et 256 222
Non-current assets and disposal groups held fOr SAIE ..........coiiiiiiiiii e 1,199 1,230
Other assets 21,408 9,177
Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale 31.3.2019 31.12.2018
Repossessed collateral:
(=T oo I TaTo I o] (o] o 1= o VO O PSSP PP PP R TRPPPPRPPPRN 959 995
Industrial equIPMENt AN VENICIES .......coouuiiiiiieee e e e et e e e e e e s b e e e e e e e nbereeeeeas 18 17
Assets of disposal groups classified as held fOr SAIE ............ccooiiiiiiiiii e 222 218
Total 1,199 1,230
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30. Deposits from Central Bank and credit institutions

31.3.2019 31.12.2018

Deposits from Credit INSTEULIONS .......ooo.iiieiie ettt e e e e e e be b et e e e e e sabbb e e e e e e s aanbeeeeeeeaannbaaeeaeeaansnrees 16,404 15,527
Repurchase agreements With Central BANK ............coiuiiiiiiiiiiiie et e s e e e - 92
Deposits from Central Bank and credit institutions 16,404 15,619

31. Deposits from customers

31.3.2019 31.12.2018

[D1=TaaF= T o [ (=] o0 1S3 | SRR 542,558 499,170
e (oo (=T o Lo |« SO UPPPPPPN 68,745 79,789
Deposits from customers 611,303 578,959

*Demand deposits include deposits with maturity of up to 3 months.

Deposits from customers specified by owners:

31.3.2019 31.12.2018
Amount % of total Amount % of total
Central government and state-owned ENLErPriSES .........ccoueiriiieriiieiiiie e seee e 7,239 1% 9,331 2%
MUNICIPAITIES ..veveeeieeiieeiee ettt e e e e sttt e e e e s e nbb bt e e e e e snttbeeeeeaeannnnes 5,738 1% 5,574 1%
COMIPANIES ...ttt ettt et et e et et e e e bb e e e kbt e e e sbe e e e b b e e e eabeeeanbeeeeanbeeesnbneeennneas 313,661 51% 278,209 48%
INCIVIAUALS ...ttt e e e ettt e e e e e e sttt e e e e e e sntb e e e e e e snnbeeeeaeeannes 284,665 47% 285,845 49%
Deposits from customers 611,303 100% 578,959 100%

32. Pledged assets

31.3.2019 31.12.2018

Financial assets pledged as collateral against 1abilities .............coouiiiiiiiiiiii e 193,262 190,471
Financial assets pledged as collateral in foreign DanKs ..o 1,623 1,105
Financial assets pledged as collateral in repurchase agreements .............cooiuiiiiiiieiiiiiei e 139 153
Pledged assets against liabilities 195,024 191,729

The Group has pledged assets against the issuance of covered bonds under Icelandic law, which are pledged on a pool of consumer
mortgage loans. The underlying cover pool must withstand a weekly stress test.

The Group has also pledged cash in foreign banks and financial institutions, mainly as collateral for trades under ISDA agreements to hedge
market risk.
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33. Debt issued and other borrowed funds

Issued Maturity Maturity type Terms of interest 31.3.2019 31.12.2018
Covered bond in ISK* ........cccovviviiiiiennn 2014-2017 2019 Atmaturity  Fixed rates 8,860 9,866
Covered bond in ISK ... . 2019 2021  Atmaturity  Fixed rates 2,352 -
Covered bond in ISK .......cccooviviiiiiciiene. 2015-2019 2023 Atmaturity  Fixed rates 12,454 10,890
Covered bond in ISK - CPI-linked ............. 2012-2014 2019 Atmaturity  Fixed rates - 8,937
Covered bond in ISK - CPI-linked ............. 2014-2015 2020  Atmaturity  Fixed rates 4,307 4,248
Covered bond in ISK - CPI-linked 2015-2017 2022 Atmaturity  Fixed rates 17,975 18,009
Covered bond in ISK - CPI-linked 2012-2018 2024 Atmaturity  Fixed rates 34,854 35,009
Covered bond in ISK - CPI-linked 2015-2018 2026 Atmaturity  Fixed rates 27,344 26,992
Covered bond in ISK - CPI-linked ............. 2019 2028  Atmaturity  Fixed rates 7,183 -
Covered bond in ISK - CPI-linked ............. 2017-2018 2030  Atmaturity  Fixed rates 25,157 24,862
Covered bonds 140,486 138,813
Senior unsecured bond in SEK ................. 2015 2019  Atmaturity  Floating rates - 7,844
Senior unsecured bond in EUR ................. 2017 2019 Atmaturity  Floating rates 1,376 4,398
Senior unsecured bond in SEK ................. 2018 2019  Atmaturity  Floating rates 1,323 1,302
Senior unsecured bond in EUR** .............. 2016 2020  Atmaturity  Fixed rates 71,186 68,154
Senior unsecured bond in SEK ................. 2018-2019 2020  Atmaturity  Floating rates 7,943 3,259
Senior unsecured bond in SEK ................. 2018-2019 2021  Atmaturity  Floating rates 20,585 16,364
Senior unsecured bond in SEK ................. 2018 2022 Atmaturity  Floating rates 13,204 12,995
Senior unsecured bond in NOK ................. 2019 2022 Atmaturity  Fixed rates 14,252 -
Senior unsecured bond in EUR*** ............. 2018 2024  Atmaturity  Fixed rates 41,911 40,714
Senior unsecured bond in NOK 2019 2024  Atmaturity  Floating rates 5,714 -
Bonds issued 177,494 155,030
BillS ISSUBM ...ttt a——t—————————————t——tt bttt teta bt aeananaararaaararaaaaaaaaaes 6,638 6,729
OFNEr TEDE SECUNLIES ...ttt ettt e ettt et e n e e ebn e e bt e san e e nre e e e naneenes 417 404
Other borrowed funds 7,055 7,133
Debt issued and other borrowed funds 325,035 300,976

*[slandsbanki repurchased own covered bonds during the period amounting to ISK 288 million.

**This bond issuance is classified as being designated as at fair value through profit or loss. At 31 March 2019 the total carrying amount of
the bond amounted to ISK 71,186 million and included in the amount are fair value changes amounting to ISK 664 million. The carrying
amount of the bond at 31 March 2019 was ISK 1,233 million higher than the contractual amount due at maturity.

**The Group applies hedge accounting to this bond issuance and uses certain EUR denominated interest rate swaps as hedging
instruments (see Note 22). The interest rate swaps are hedging the exposure of the Group's changes in the fair value of this fixed-rate EUR
denominated bond arising from changes in interest rates. The Group applies fair value hedge accounting to the hedging relationships. At 31
March 2019 the total carrying amount of the bond issuance amounted to ISK 41,911 million and included in the amount are fair value
changes amounting to ISK 250 million.

The covered bond amounts do not contain the bonds reserved for securities lending.
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34. Subordinated loans

Issued  Maturity Maturity type Terms of interest 31.3.2019 31.12.2018
Loans which qualify as Tier 2 capital:
Subordinated loans in SEK ...........ccccevveveiieieinenen. 2017 2027  Atmaturity  Floating, STIBOR + 2.0% 9,875 9,724
Subordinated loans in SEK ..........ccccooiiiiniiiiniienne 2018 2028  Atmaturity  Floating, STIBOR + 2.5% 6,593 6,492
Subordinated loans 16,468 16,216
35. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Non-cash changes
Foreign
Interest exchange  Fair value
31.12.2018 Cash flows expense movement changes 31.3.2019
Covered bonds NIL ... 20,756 2,568 342 - - 23,666
Covered bonds CPl ...t 118,057 (2,696) 1,459 - - 116,820
Senior unsecured bonds FX .........ocooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecs 46,162 17,101 223 911 - 64,397
Senior unsecured bonds FX at fair value ...........cccccevvveeennnenn. 68,154 - 180 2,188 664 71,186
Senior unsecured bonds used for hedging ............cccocveiiiiiienns 40,714 (466) 124 1,289 250 41,911
Short-term BOrroWINGS .......cocceveiiiiiiiiiieiceee e 7,133 (153) 75 - - 7,055
Subordinated [0aNS ..........cceiiiiiiiiiie e 16,216 (74) 80 246 - 16,468
Total 317,192 16,280 2,483 4,634 914 341,503
Non-cash changes
Foreign
Reclas & Cash Interest exchange  Fair value
31.12.2017 remeasure 1.1.2018 flows  expense movement changes 31.12.2018
Covered bonds NIL ........cccvvveeeeiiiiiiieeeene 17,589 - 17,589 2,055 1,112 - - 20,756
Covered bonds CPI ........cocceeviiiieiiiieeee. 91,351 - 91,351 20,134 6,572 - - 118,057
Senior unsecured bonds FX ...........cccco...e. 37,182 (19,003) 18,179 23,275 531 4,177 - 46,162
Senior unsecured bonds FX at fair value ... - 84,563 84,563 (20,083) 963 3,868 (1,157) 68,154
Senior unsecured bonds used for hedging 63,652 ( 63,652) - 37,406 430 2,390 488 40,714
Short-term borrowings ...........cccocveeiineeens 7,974 - 7,974 (1,231) 390 - - 7,133
Subordinated loans ...........c.ccccooeeeei 9,505 - 9,505 5,629 198 884 - 16,216
Total 227,253 1,908 229,161 67,185 10,196 11,319 (669) 317,192
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36. Other liabilities

31.3.2019 31.12.2018
AACCTUABIS ...ttt e bttt e bt e e bt e e bbb e e e bt e e b e e e e e b e e e bbb e e et e ba e 3,823 3,906
Liabilities to retailers for Credit CardsS ...........coviiiiriiii et ans 23,581 20,722
LASE NADINLIES ....eeieiiieeet ittt ettt n e e e 4,430 -
Off-balance sheet loan commitments and financial QUArANTEES ...........cc.eeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 630 636
LAVA1ia] gTe] (o1 o I 7= b TP PUP T PPRTPPRTIN 1,884 1,733
Unsettled SECUNLIES traNSACHIONS ........oiiiiiiiiiee i e s e e e e nnee s 10,691 612
DEFEITEA INCOMIE ...ttt ettt a et e e b et e e b et e s e b et e s b et e e e i b et e s b et e e be e e e e abr e e s nbb e e e asaneeas 177 193
5101 LV 1= o1 =T TP RUUPPTRUPPP 1,552 1,841
Non-current liabilities and disposal groups held fOr SAIE ...t 1 6
Other liabilities 46,769 29,649
Reconciliation of off-balance sheet loan commitments and financial guarantees:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AL L JANUANY 2019 ...ttt e s e e e e e e e e s s e e e e e e e e e e e nnnne 410 142 84 636
Transfer to Stage 1 71 (52) (19) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (5) 9 (4) -
Transfer to Stage 3 (2) (2) 4 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance (including changes in models) (118) (47) 73 (92)
New loan commitments and financial guarantees ............cccccvviiiiiiiciiiic e 112 4 23 139
Derecognitions and MALUNTIES .........ccoiuiriiiieieiiiie et e e (37) (14) (2) (53)
At 31 March 2019 431 40 159 630
AL L JANUANY 2018 .....eiiiiiiieiiitii ettt e ettt e e et e e e e r e e e e e b b e e e e e e n e e e e e e annne 467 101 106 674
Transfer t0 STAGE 1 .....viiiiiiie i 595 (545) (50) -
TranSTEr 10 STAGE 2 ....ueeeiiiiie ettt ettt sttt e (58) 67 (9) -
Transfer t0 STAGE 3 ... (6) (69) 75 -
Net remeasurement Of 0SS @llOWANCE ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e (828) 481 (132) (479)
New loan commitments and financial guarantees ............cccceoviiiiiiieiiiie e 521 130 132 783
Derecognitions @and MALUNTIES .........cooiviiiiieieiiiie ettt e e e e e e (281) (23) (38) (342)
At 31 December 2018 410 142 84 636
37. Custody assets
31.3.2019 31.12.2018
Custody assets - Not managed DY the GIOUP ..........oiiiiiiiiii et e e et e e e e e eennees 2,502,879 2,167,946
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38. Related party

islandsbanki is wholly owned by the Icelandic Government. The shares are administered by the Icelandic State Financial Investments (ISFI).
As a result, the Icelandic Government and the Icelandic State Financial Investments are defined as related parties. The Group has applied
the partial exemption for government-related entities, as described in IAS 24, and does not disclose those transactions in the related party
note.

The Board of Directors and key management personnel of the Bank, ISFI and subsidiaries of the Bank, close family members of individuals
referred to herein and legal entities controlled by them, are defined as related parties.
The Group's associates are also defined as related parties.

The Group's products and services are offered to the Icelandic Government and government-related entities in competition with other vendors
and under generally accepted commercial terms. In a similar manner, the Bank and other Group entities purchase products and services
from government-related entities under generally accepted commercial terms. Transactions with related parties were made in the ordinary
course of business on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable
transactions with third party counterparties.

Cash and balances with the Central Bank are disclosed under Note 21 and Deposits from the Central Bank are disclosed under Note 30.

All loans to employees are provided on general business terms of the Group and the balances do not reflect collaterals held by the Group.

At 31 March 2019 Commitments
Assets Liabilities Net balance & overdrafts

Shareholders with control OVer the GrouUP ..........coouieiiiiiiiiicce e - - - 1
Board of Directors, key management personnel and other related parties ..................... 229 367 (138) 72
ASSOCIAtEd COMPANIES .....eeiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt et e e e sbe e bb e e sbe e e sbseeeaineeas 170 803 (633) 210
Balances with related parties 399 1,170 (771) 283
1 January - 31 March 2019 Interest Interest Other Other

income expense income expense
Board of Directors and key management personnel ...........cccceeeiieieiiiieeniiee e 14 2 - -
ASSOCIAtEd COMPANIES .....oiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt eeneees 3 5 2 425
Transactions with related parties 17 7 2 425
At 31 December 2018 Commitments

Assets Liabilities Net balance & overdrafts

Shareholders with control Over the GroUP ..........coccuiiiiiiiiriice e - 105 (105) -
Board of Directors, key management personnel and other related parties .................... 220 493 (273) 82
Associated companies 198 469 (271) 210
Balances with related parties 418 1,067 (649) 292
1 January - 31 March 2018 Interest Interest Other Other

income expense income expense
Shareholders with control Over the GroUP ..........cooouviiiiiiiiiie e - 1 - -
Board of Directors and key management personnel .. 4 4 - -
ASSOCIAtEd COMPANIES .....eiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt et es 4 4 - 437
Transactions with related parties 8 9 - 437

At 31 March 2019 ISK 2 million were recognised as Stage 1 expected credit loss against balances outstanding with related parties (2018: ISK
2 million). No share option programmes were operated during the reporting period.
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39. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities

Borgun hf.

Borgun hf., a subsidiary of islandsbanki, is a payment acquirer and issuing processor. Landsbankinn hf. sold its 31.2% stake in Borgun in late
2014. Landsbankinn claims that Borgun's management did not disclose all available information that might have affected the value of Borgun
during the sales process, namely the worth of its stake in Visa Europe which was sold to Visa International shortly after the Borgun sale. In
order to reclaim the alleged loss, Landsbankinn filed a lawsuit on 12 January 2017 against four defendants, including Borgun hf., claiming the
right to damages for having been deprived of the true value of the stake involved in the sale. Landsbankinn does not quantify the claim, but
its estimate of the lost profit from having sold its shares in Borgun is approximately ISK 1,930 million. Seeing that the conclusion of the case
is uncertain and the financial effect cannot be estimated the Group has not recognised a provision in relation to this matter. The court has
appointed professionals to assess certain matters regarding the claim but it is uncertain when the assessment will be completed. Therefore, it
is uncertain when a ruling is to be expected.

40. Events after the reporting period

No events have arisen after the reporting period that require amendments or additional disclosures in the interim financial statements for the
first quarter 2019.

41. Risk management

Risk governance

The Group is exposed to various risk factors and managing these risks is an integral part of its operations. More information about the
Group's risk management and risk assessment processes is available in the unaudited Pillar 3 Report. The Pillar 3 2018 Report is available
on the Bank's website: www.islandsbanki.is.

42. Credit risk

Credit risk is defined as current or prospective risk to earnings and capital arising from an obligor's potential failure to meet the terms of any
financial contract with the Group.

Credit concentration risk is the significantly increased risk that is driven by common underlying factors, e.g. industrial sector, economy,
geographical location, type of financial instrument or due to connections or relations among counterparties. This includes exposures to
parties under common control and significant exposures to groups of counterparties whose likelihood of default is driven by common
underlying factors.

Credit risk arises principally from loans and advances to customers and other banks but also from balances with the Central Bank and off-
balance sheet items such as financial guarantees, loan commitments and derivatives.

The Group has policies and procedures dedicated to accepting, measuring, and managing credit risk. The objective of the Group's credit risk
management is to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and to minimise potential adverse effects of credit risk on the
Group's financial performance.

A thorough analysis of the counterparty's financial standing, analysis of past and estimated future cash flows as well as the borrower's
general ability to repay its obligations forms the basis for all credit decisions. The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by
placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, groups of borrowers, countries and industry segments. The Group
measures and consolidates its credit risk for each counterparty or group of connected clients in accordance with internal and external criteria
of connection between parties.

The Group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking of security in borrower's
assets. The principal collateral types for loans are properties, vehicles, equipment, vessels and securities. When applicable, other credit risk
mitigants are employed.
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43. Maximum credit exposure

The Group's credit risk exposure comprises both on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet items. Maximum exposure to credit risk for on-balance sheet assets is the net carrying amount as reported in the
statement of financial position. The maximum exposure for off-balance sheet items is the amount that the Group might have to pay out against financial guarantees and loan commitments, less provisions that
have been made because of these items. The maximum credit exposure for a derivative contract is calculated by adding potential future credit exposure to the positive market value of the contract.

The industry breakdown shows the credit exposure by industry classification. The breakdown follows an internal industry classification which is based on the Icelandic ISAT2008 that derives from the European
NACE Rev. 2 classification standard.

The Group's credit exposure, before taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements, is as follows:

Maximum credit exposure at 31 March 2019

Public sector

Central Commerce Financial  Industrial and Investment  and non-profit Real
Individuals  governments and services  Construction Energy  services transportation companies organisations estate Seafood Total
Cash and balances with CB ............. - 129,039 - - - - - - - - - 129,039
Bonds and debt instruments ............ - 62,551 - - 194 15,182 1,532 607 681 62 - 80,809
Derivatives ........cccveeeeeeeiiiieieee e 1 - 114 - 2,255 5,931 605 426 - 75 220 9,627
Loans to credit institutions ............... - - - - - 65,145 - - - - - 65,145
Loans to customers: 324,245 - 130,325 31,466 6,911 2,575 80,986 24,657 11,528 148,765 112,072 873,530
Overdrafts .....cccccveeeeiiiiiiieeeeenn, 12,417 - 15,214 3,671 144 2,364 4,731 494 246 4,829 9,010 53,120
Credit cards .......coccoevvvvvieernenns 13,809 - 1,486 226 6 24 434 39 128 64 37 16,253
Mortgages ....... 255,579 - - - - - - - - - - 255,579
Capital leases 6,234 - 29,835 2,217 5 - 7,589 113 43 1,053 220 47,309
Other loans ........cccccceeeeevinvnenn. 36,206 - 83,790 25,352 6,756 187 68,232 24,011 11,111 142,819 102,805 501,269
Other financial assets ...................... 544 10 205 6 1 18,367 217 54 47 192 7 19,650
Off-balance sheet items: 35,389 - 26,576 18,566 10,255 7,314 13,958 1,274 5,720 20,339 13,213 152,604
Financial guarantees .................. 1,485 - 5,764 4,715 12 1,172 3,058 137 36 1,964 260 18,603
Undrawn loan commitments ...... - - 5,862 10,971 9,990 - 5,244 802 - 15,054 4,913 52,836
Undrawn overdrafts ..................... 8,983 - 10,703 2,126 231 6,010 4,591 214 5,012 3,084 7,888 48,842
Credit card commitments ............ 24,921 - 4,247 754 22 132 1,065 121 672 237 152 32,323
Total maximum credit exposure 360,179 191,600 157,220 50,038 19,616 114,514 97,298 27,018 17,976 169,433 125,512 1,330,404
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43. Cont'd

Maximum credit exposure at 31 December 2018

Public sector

Central Commerce Financial  Industrial and Investment  and non-profit Real

Individuals  governments and services  Construction Energy  services transportation companies organisations estate Seafood Total

Cash and balances with CB ............. - 135,056 - - - - - - - - - 135,056
Bonds and debt instruments ............ - 53,341 - - 447 12,925 1,724 68 724 186 - 69,415
Derivatives .........cccoovveeeiiieee e - - 121 2 2,322 4,687 451 1,090 - 61 205 8,939
Loans to credit institutions ............... - - - - - 41,577 - - - - - 41,577
Loans to customers: 319,390 - 124,242 29,095 6,858 1,704 79,824 23,799 12,087 142,885 106,715 846,599
Overdrafts ......ccoceeveeeeiiieeennnn, 11,769 - 11,699 3,304 31 1,509 4,483 780 754 4,501 9,751 48,581
Credit cards .........ccceeviveeeninenn. 15,779 - 1,516 251 4 21 433 33 112 59 34 18,242
MOrtgages .........eeevevevevererenenennns 249,296 - - - - - - - - - - 249,296
Capital leases ........... . 6,504 - 27,552 2,270 5 - 7,166 116 48 1,197 258 45,116
Other 1oans ........cccccoeveeeiiinens 36,042 - 83,475 23,270 6,818 174 67,742 22,870 11,173 137,128 96,672 485,364
Other financial assets ...................... 409 - 451 5 1 6,532 23 34 3 18 35 7,511
Off-balance sheet items: 33,928 - 24,673 18,703 6,091 8,160 12,413 3,817 4,517 20,850 12,805 145,957
Financial guarantees ............... 1,494 - 5,863 4,563 12 1,172 2,416 160 5 1,828 508 18,021
Undrawn loan commitments ... - - 4,986 11,662 5,996 - 4,899 1,100 - 14,629 5,782 49,054
Undrawn overdrafts .................. 10,187 - 9,908 1,830 63 6,863 4,124 2,433 3,884 4,167 6,374 49,833
Credit card commitments ... 22,247 - 3,916 648 20 125 974 124 628 226 141 29,049
Total maximum credit exposure 353,727 188,397 149,487 47,805 15,719 75,585 94,435 28,808 17,331 164,000 119,760 1,255,054
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44. Credit exposure covered by collateral

Collateral and other credit mitigants vary between types of obligors and credit facilities. Loans to credit institutions are usually unsecured. For
loans to individuals the principal collateral taken is residential property against mortgages. In the case of corporate entities the Group takes a
charge over assets such as real estate, vessels, cash and securities and as well as other collateral including accounts receivables, inventory,
vehicles and equipment. Loans to government entities and to municipalities are more often than not unsecured. Derivative exposures are
generally made under ISDA master agreements with Credit Support Annex or corresponding terms with pledged collateral in the form of cash
and government bonds.

In some cases the Group uses guarantees as a credit enhancement but since guarantees effectively transfer credit risk from one
counterparty to another they do not represent a reduction in maximum exposure to credit risk. Covenants in loan agreements are also an
important credit enhancement but do not reduce maximum credit exposure.

Valuation of collateral is based on market price, official valuation for tax purposes or expert opinion of the Group's employees, depending on
availability. In the case of fishing vessels the associated fishing quota is included in the valuation. Collateral is allocated according to the
gross carrying amount of loans and nominal off-balance sheet items, and is measured without including the effect of overcollateralisation.
This means that if some loans have collateral values in excess of their gross carrying amount, then the excess is removed in order to reflect
the Group's actual maximum exposure to credit risk. The total value of pledged assets can thus be higher than the cover indicates. The
maximum credit risk exposure is measured on net carrying value basis, and therefore collateral allocation can in some instances be higher.

For capital leases the Group remains the owner of the leased object. In total ISK 37,896 million of the collateral are leased objects.
The following tables show the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset and collateral held against those exposures.

An overview of collateral held by the Group against credit exposure is shown below for exposures in Stages 1 and 2 (non credit-impaired) and
exposures in Stage 3 (credit-impaired):

Total credit

At 31 March 2019 Maximum exposure
exposure to Real Cash & Vehicles & Other covered by

Collateral held against non credit-impaired exposures credit risk estate  Vessels securities equipment collateral  collateral
DENVALIVES .....eeeiiiiieiiiee et 9,627 - - 2,145 - - 2,145
Loans and commitments to customers: 1,010,690 583,690 94,140 6,333 51,107 71,163 806,433
INAIVIAUALS ... 352,807 272,211 23 390 13,343 118 286,085
COMMErCE aNnd SEIVICES ...cc.vveeeiiieeiiiieiiieeeniieesreeeaieee e 153,915 58,203 843 246 28,871 23,985 112,148
CONSIIUCLION ..ottt 49,730 31,326 - 471 1,913 3,519 37,229
Energy ............... .. 17,166 3,751 - 369 - 5 4,125
Financial SErVICES .........coooiiiiiiiiii e, 9,889 - - 311 - - 311
Industrial and transportation ............c.cceeviieeeiiiieeniiee e 92,103 42,503 9 77 6,493 16,169 65,251
INvestment COMPANIES ........ccccvviiriiiiiiiiieiiee e 25,731 9,999 - 3,212 90 11,348 24,649
Public sector and non-profit organisations .............c.cc.cue.... 17,202 965 - 6 32 - 1,003
Real estate ... ... 167,126 150,790 - 1,232 226 1,204 153,452
SA00M ... 125,021 13,942 93,265 19 139 14,815 122,180
Total 1,020,317 583,690 94,140 8,478 51,107 71,163 808,578
Total credit

Maximum exposure

exposure to Real Cash & Vehicles & Other covered by

Collateral held against credit-impaired exposures credit risk estate  Vessels securities equipment collateral  collateral
Loans and commitments to customers: 15,444 9,983 1,348 114 1,110 342 12,897
Individuals ...........cccoenneee. 6,827 6,028 - 13 135 2 6,178
Commerce and services 2,986 1,274 - - 823 73 2,170
CONSIIUCHION ..ttt 302 220 - - 28 11 259
Industrial and transSportation ...........ccccoccveeieienniiiieeee s 2,841 221 1,348 101 87 201 1,958
INvestment COMPANIES ........cccvviiiiiiiiiiieieee e 200 183 - - - - 183
Public sector and non-profit organisations . 46 40 - - - - 40
REAI ESTALE ...vvvvvivieieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 1,978 1,868 - - 1 - 1,869
SEAMOOM ... 264 149 - - 36 55 240
Total 15,444 9,983 1,348 114 1,110 342 12,897
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Total credit
At 31 December 2018 Maximum exposure
exposure to Real Cash & Vehicles & Other covered by
Collateral held against non credit-impaired exposures credit risk estate  Vessels securities equipment collateral  collateral
DEIMVALIVES ..evieeieiiiieee ettt e e e e e e e 8,939 - - 2,232 - - 2,232
Loans and commitments to customers: 978,396 563,362 89,350 6,149 49,883 69,902 778,646
INAIVIAUAIS ... 347,490 266,508 6 359 13,485 155 280,513
COMMEICE AN SEIVICES .....vvvvvvvererireriiererereeereeeereeeeeereereeeees 146,286 56,407 733 189 27,574 23,915 108,818
(0] 1511 {1 o311 o 1SS PSRR 47,495 28,694 - 379 1,880 3,761 34,714
ENEIQY oottt 12,949 3,737 - 366 - 5 4,108
Financial services 9,864 - - 309 - - 309
Industrial and transportation 89,289 39,523 9 82 6,437 15,980 62,031
INVeStMeNt COMPANIES ......ccoiuviiiiiiieriiee e 27,392 9,588 26 2,891 83 11,361 23,949
Public sector and non-profit organisations ...............cc.cc..... 16,551 974 - 7 37 2 1,020
REAI BSTALE ....uvviiiee e 161,864 144,530 - 1,549 231 1,113 147,423
SEAF00M ....uviiiiiiie et 119,216 13,401 88,576 18 156 13,610 115,761
Total 987,335 563,362 89,350 8,381 49,883 69,902 780,878
Total credit
Maximum exposure
exposure to Real Cash & Vehicles & Other covered by
Collateral held against credit-impaired exposures credit risk estate  Vessels securities equipment collateral  collateral
Loans and commitments to customers: 14,160 9,003 2,282 106 328 487 12,206
INAIVIAUAIS .o 5,828 5,256 17 7 83 3 5,366
Commerce and SEIVICES ........cccvuvereeeeeiiiiiieeeeeeiieieeeeeeesinnes 2,629 1,023 139 - 78 247 1,487
[OF0] a1 i (U Te3 110 o IO PP PPPUPPPRPPPRRt 303 232 - - 21 14 267
Industrial and transportation .... 2,948 317 2,077 99 109 170 2,772
INvestment COMPANIES ........ccccvviiiiiiiriiiieiiee e 224 180 - - - - 180
Public sector and non-profit organisations .............c.ccccuee... 53 37 - - - - 37
REAI ESTALE ...vvvvveeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 1,871 1,829 - - 1 - 1,830
SEA00M ..o 304 129 49 - 36 53 267
Total 14,160 9,003 2,282 106 328 487 12,206

45. Credit quality of financial assets

The following table provides the gross carrying amount of loans and credit risk exposure on loan commitments and financial guarantees.
Amounts are broken down by risk class and the method by which their respective credit loss allowances (ECL) are calculated, i.e. Stage 1, 2
and 3.

The Group uses internal rating models to assess the default probability of corporate and retail customers. The models assign each customer
to one of ten risk classes. One risk class is for customers in default (risk class 10), and nine risk classes are for performing customers (risk
classes 1-9). Risk classes are assigned on customer level and not facility level.

The rating of corporate customers is based on a company's most recent financial statement, together with a qualitative assessment of its
management, market position and industry sector.

For retail customers the Group uses two different statistical rating models. One model is for individuals and another is for small companies
with a total exposure to the Group of less than ISK 150 million. These models are behavioural scoring models and use information about a
customer's payment history, amount of debt and deposits, and demographic variables to assess the probability that a customer will default on
any of his obligations within 12 months of the rating assessment.
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45, Cont'd

Risk classes 1-4 represent low risk, risk classes 5-6 moderate risk, risk classes 7-8 increased risk, risk class 9 high risk, and risk class 10
represents customers that are in default. Unrated are loans originating from subsidiaries of islandsbanki that do not have rating models, in
addition to loans that are yet to be rated.

Further information on the risk classes, including the mapping from risk classes to the probability of default, can be found in Section 4.2.2 of
the unaudited Pillar 3 2018 Report.

The same customer can have loans and off-balance sheet commitments in Stages 1 and 2 simultaneously. However, if a customer has an
exposure in Stage 3 then all other loans and commitments are classified as Stage 3 as well.

As explained in Note 72.3 in the consolidated financial statements for the year 2018, the Group has a new harmonised definition of default.
The new definition is broader than each individual definition, in particular the previous definition of Risk class 10.

At 31 March 2019

Loans to customers: Stage 1  Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RISK CIASS 14 ...ttt ettt e ettt e e e e e bbbt e e e e e e nbab et e e e e e astbbeeeaeesnnnnes 210,979 133 - 211,112
RISK CIASS 56 ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et e e e bt e st et e bt e e e nbr e e e bne e e eneeee s 372,188 15,171 - 387,359
RISK CIASS 7-8 ... ittt e ettt e e e s bbb e e e e s s s nbab et e e e e e satbaeeeaeesnnnnes 197,355 14,656 - 212,011
RISK ClASS 9 .ttt ettt ettt et e ettt e st e e e sttt e e enbe e e e ab e e e nnneeeanes 38,642 9,722 - 48,364
RIS o = T KO PP EUT PP PPRPN - - 18,998 18,998
(6731 1= EO PP OPPP 4,340 38 149 4,527

823,504 39,720 19,147 882,371
(oI (= To o (=T [} (o PRSP UPPPRPPPRIN (3,649) (968) (4,224) (8,841)
Net carrying amount 819,855 38,752 14,923 873,530
Off-balance sheet loan commitments and financial guarantees: Stage 1  Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Risk class 1-4 76,828 48 - 76,876
Risk class 5-6 54,087 646 - 54,733
Risk class 7-8 17,600 1,365 - 18,965
RISK ClASS O ...t e et e e e e e e et e e e e e e et e e e e e enraaea s 1,414 452 - 1,866
RISK CIASS 10 ...uviiiieiiiiiieiit et et e e e e e e e e st e e e e e e et b e e e e e e e antate e e e e e enanrareeaeeaas - - 680 680
[0 a1 =T IR 111 3 - 114
150,040 2,514 680 153,234
EXPECIEA Credit I0SS. ...ccoutiieiiiieeii et ettt (431) (40) (159) (630)
Total 149,609 2,474 521 152,604
Risk Risk Risk Risk Risk
At 31 March 2019 class class class class class
1-4 5-6 7-8 9 10  Unrated ECL Total
Loans and commitments to customers:
Individuals .........oeeeieiiiiiie e 74,637 136,382 107,202 32,461 7,955 3,730 (2,733) 359,634
Commerce and SEerVICES ..........ceevevevveeveeeeeeeeenns 38,824 85,447 23,745 6,438 4,274 625 (2,452) 156,901
CONSLIUCLION ...evvviiie e 3,947 22,580 22,435 1,163 348 37 (478) 50,032
ENEIQY oot 15,518 640 1,039 - - - (31) 17,166
Financial ServiCes ........ccccoooiviviiiiiiiiiiieeeeins 9,305 592 10 - - 4 (22) 9,889
Industrial and transportation ...............cccccveeennn. 28,376 50,657 8,591 4,823 3,903 165 (1,571) 94,944
Investment COMPAnIes .........cccooecvvveeeeeeniiineenn. 3,676 7,377 14,688 348 405 - (563) 25,931
Public sector and non-profit organisations ....... 14,175 2,728 245 3 50 68 (21) 17,248
Real estate . 40,014 79,179 45,701 3,035 2,269 11 (1,105) 169,104
Seafood .......cccvvieie e 59,516 56,510 7,320 1,959 474 1 (495) 125,285
Total 287,988 442,092 230,976 50,230 19,678 4,641 (9,471) 1,026,134
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At 31 December 2018

Loans to customers: Stage1l  Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RISK CIASS 14 ...ttt 213,012 104 - 213,116
RISK CIASS 56 ...ttt ettt eb ettt ettt 367,843 1,055 - 368,898
RISK CIASS 7-8 ...t 184,807 15,339 - 200,146
RISK CIASS 9 ..ottt h ettt ettt et 38,633 12,363 - 50,996
RISK CIASS 10 ...ttt et et - - 17,215 17,215
L8011 R TP TP P POV PPTPPRTPON 4,137 41 95 4,273
808,432 28,902 17,310 854,644
EXPECLEA CrOUIt IOSS. ... eeeeiiieiiiiiii ettt e e et e e e e e st e e e e e e s sanbreeeaeeean (3,277) (1,079 (3,689) (8,045)
Net carrying amount 805,155 27,823 13,621 846,599
Off-balance sheet loan commitments and financial guarantees: Stage 1  Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Risk class 1-4 68,712 30 - 68,742
Risk class 5-6 55,112 194 - 55,306
Risk class 7-8 16,913 1,899 - 18,812
RISK ClASS 9 .ttt ettt ettt ettt e e et bt e st e e e sttt e e enbe e e s ab e e e anneeeaaes 1,517 1,460 - 2,977
RISK CIASS 10 ...eeiiiieeeiiieiit ettt e ettt e e e sttt e e e e e et bb e e e e e e anbbbeeeeeeennnbneeeaeeaas - - 623 623
(6731 1= EO PSPPSR PPP 130 3 - 133
142,384 3,586 623 146,593
EXPECIEA Credit 0SS, ...cciueeieiiiiee ittt ettt e et e e s snbe e e snbeeeaaes (410) (142) (84) (636)
Total 141,974 3,444 539 145,957

Risk Risk Risk Risk Risk

At 31 December 2018 class class class class class
1-4 5-6 7-8 9 10  Unrated ECL Total

Loans and commitments to customers:
INAIVIAUAIS ..o 74,325 135,721 101,859 33,354 6,955 3,499 (2,395) 353,318
Commerce and services 33,700 84,690 23,538 5,455 3,718 585 (2,771) 148,915
CONSLIUCLION ..o 3,387 21,930 21,711 1,024 336 53 (643) 47,798
ENEIQY oo 11,472 544 965 - - - (32) 12,949
Financial ServiCes ........ccccouvviviveeeiniiiiieee e 9,450 419 8 - - 4 (17) 9,864
Industrial and transportation ..............cccceeceeenne 34,253 41,922 8,331 4,930 3,705 69 (973) 92,237
Investment COMPANIes ........cceeevvvieeeeeeeiireeennn. 5,709 6,976 10,751 4,241 414 - (475) 27,616
Public sector and non-profit organisations ....... 13,150 3,119 240 - 52 66 (23) 16,604
Real eState .......ccooovveieeiiiiiee e 41,768 73,484 44,312 2,909 2,172 36 (946) 163,735
SAf00M ....eeeeieieeee e 54,644 55,399 7,243 2,060 486 94 (406) 119,520
Total 281,858 424,204 218,958 53,973 17,838 4,406 (8,681) 992,556
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46. Forbearance and write-offs

When restructuring or modification measures are believed to be more appropriate than collection procedures, the Group offers several debt
relief measures and restructuring frameworks for customers in financial difficulties. These forbearance measures include temporary payment
holidays, extension of loan terms, capitalisation of arrears and waiving of covenants.

When a loan has been renegotiated or modified but not derecognised the Group also reassesses, after a certain trial period, whether the loan
is still considered to have a significant increase in credit risk. The Group also considers whether forborne assets classified as Stage 3 should
be recognised and transferred to Stage 2.

Once an asset has been classified as forborne, it will remain forborne for a minimum 24-month probation period. In order for a loan to be
reclassified out of the forborne category, the customer has to meet all of the following criteria:

- All of the customer's facilities have to be considered performing; and

- The customer does not have any contract that is more than 30 days past due; and

- The probation period of two years has passed from the date the forborne contract was considered performing; and

- Regular payments of more than an insignificant amount of principal or interest have been made during at least half of the probation period.

The following table provides a summary of the Group's forborne assets.

At 31 March 2019

Stage 1  Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

INAIVIAUAS ...ttt e e e e e nreesnneenneennneenne 1,316 1,642 1,287 4,245
COMPANIES ...ttt ettt e et h et et ettt h e e be e e s bt e bt sa bt e ke e eab e e bt e ebe e e bt enabeenbeenbeennneenee 14,874 4,780 4,188 23,842
Gross carrying amount 16,190 6,422 5,475 28,087
Stage 1  Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

INAIVIAUAS ...ttt e e e e e nreesnneenneennneenne (11) (53) (163) (227)
COMPANIES ...ttt ettt e e s et s b et e e bt e e e e b et e e b bt e e ebbe e e e bt e e nar e e e aeneeeenane (166) (151) (1,244) (1,561)
Expected credit loss (177) (204) (1,407) (1,788)
Gross

Gross carrying amount written off during the first quarter of 2019 and still subject to enforcement activity: carrying
amount

Individuals 140
Companies 67
Total 207

At 31 December 2018

Stage 1  Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Individuals 1,741 2,020 1,238 4,999
Companies 14,377 2,016 4,588 20,981
Gross carrying amount 16,118 4,036 5,826 25,980
Stagel  Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

INAIVIAUAS ...ttt ettt et ettt nbe e st ete e s e enne (13) (92) (198) (303)
[©0]40] o=V o 1= S T TSP PSP PP PP PPPRN (139) (49) (1,160) (1,348)
Expected credit loss (152) (141) (1,358) (1,651)
Gross

Gross carrying amount written off during the first quarter of 2018 and still subject to enforcement activity: carrying
amount

[0 1Yo [N o TP PO ST PSS U PP OUPPPPPPRN 248
(0] 0] o= T a1 PSP P PPUPPPPPRORPIY 123
Total 371
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47. Large exposures disclosure

When the Group's total exposure to a group of connected clients is 10% or higher of the Group's capital base it is considered a large
exposure. Both on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet items from all types of financial instruments are included in the exposure as defined
by regulation no. 233/2017. The Group has internal criteria that define connections between clients. These criteria reflect the Group's
interpretation of Article (1)(a) of the Act on Financial Undertakings no. 161/2002, where groups of connected clients are defined. Since the
interim financial statements for the first quarter of the year are not audited, the official capital is based on reviewed own fund items at 31
December 2018.

The exposure is evaluated both before and after credit risk mitigating effects. After mitigating effects, the Group currently has four large
exposures. No large exposure is above the maximum 25% single large exposure limit set by the law.

The following tables show the Group's large exposures as a percentage of the Group's capital base, before and after eligible credit risk
mitigating effects.

At 31 March 2019

Groups of connected clients: Before After
73% 1%
13% 12%
12% 11%
11% 11%
12% 11%
At 31 December 2018
Groups of connected clients: Before After
[T (18 o e TP TP PP PTOTPPRO 73% -
(1 (8] o O U P PO PPPPPRPPPPPPPRTT 12% 12%
(] o0 o T S OSSO PTPRPRPRPPPORE 12% 11%
(1 (18] o 0 O OO P PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPPRPTON 11% 11%
(] 0T8T o T S OSSP PRPRPRPPPIRE 13% 11%

48. Liquidity risk

The Group defines liquidity risk as the risk of not being able to fund its financial obligations or planned growth, or only being able to do so
substantially above the prevailing market cost of funds.

The Group's main source of funding is customer deposits. Treasury is responsible for the Bank's funding and liquidity management in line
with internal and regulatory limits and policies. Treasury manages the Bank's intraday liquidity. Risk Management, as the second line of
defence, is responsible for independent reporting on the liquidity position to internal and external stakeholders and providing a holistic view on
liquidity risk on a consolidated basis.

49. Liquidity Coverage and Net Stable Funding Ratio

Key measures for the assessment of liquidity risk are the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR). The Central
Bank of Iceland, which is the main supervisory authority regarding liquidity risk, has incorporated the LCR and the NSFR based on the CRD
IV standards into the rules on liquidity ratio and the rules on funding ratio in foreign currencies. In addition, the Group complies with the
Financial Supervisory Authority's guidelines no. 2/2010 on best practices in liquidity management and liquidity coverage ratio rules no.
266/2017.

The following tables show the NSFR and the LCR for the Group at the end of March 2019 and at year-end 2018.

Net Stable Funding Ratio 31.3.2019 31.12.2018
(oL =1 o =1 1o =PRI 115% 114%
(ol =To [ W ol U =10 o1 (=T PO PP UPPPPPTON 166% 149%
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Liguidity Coverage Ratio

31.3.2019 31.12.2018

[T T 1 o0 £=T o (o =Y P PPPPPPPPPPPPPRY

(R o] (=1 | Ao U] (=T (o1 =T O PP UPPPPPPRN

At 31 March 2019

For all currencies

158%
453%

172%
544%

Foreign currencies

Unweighted  Weighted Unweighted Weighted
LiQUId @SSEES IEVEI ¥ ...t 172,953 172,953 52,484 52,484
Liquid assets level 2 3,323 822 3,323 822
Total liquid assets 176,276 173,775 55,807 53,306
(D= o1 171 TSRO OPTPPRPPONY 452,222 137,120 83,145 37,307
DEDE ISSUBT ...ttt et 2,988 2,988 1,530 1,530
OthEr OULFIOWS ...ttt e ettt e e e st e e e e e bbb e e e e e e sntnbeeaaeaesnnnnes 102,986 48,652 20,649 8,246
Total outflows 558,196 188,760 105,324 47,083
Short-term deposits with other banks* .............cccoiiiiiii 64,625 62,098 64,545 62,087
Oher INFIOWS ...t re e e e 33,371 16,656 6,907 4,138
ReStHCtONS ON INFIOWS ..ot - - - (130,913)
Total inflows 97,996 78,754 71,452 35,312
Liquidity coverage ratio 158% 453%

For all currencies Foreign currencies

At 31 December 2018

Unweighted  Weighted Unweighted Weighted
LiQUId @SSEES IEVEI 1% ...ttt ettt 169,217 169,217 42,608 42,608
LiQUIA @SSELS 1BVl 2 ..ottt et e e e et e e e e e e e e e e eaeeeannes 2,754 775 2,754 775
Total liquid assets 171,971 169,992 45,362 43,383
[ = o1 1S3 1 SRS UPRRRY 455,883 127,018 67,513 25,191
DIEDE ISSUBT ...ttt ettt ettt 875 875 875 875
OLhEr OULFIOWS ...ttt et e e e ettt e e e e sttt e e e e e s e nntaeeeeeeesnnnaeeaaeeennnnnes 72,598 32,095 15,277 5,849
Total outflows 529,356 159,988 83,665 31,915
Short-term deposits with other banks*™ ..o 39,718 39,718 39,716 39,716
OhEr INFIOWS ...ttt ne et nee e 42,739 21,443 9,702 7,950
ReStHCtONS ON INFIOWS ..ot - - - (23,730)
Total inflows 82,457 61,161 49,418 23,936
Liquidity coverage ratio 172% 544%

*Level 1 liquid assets include cash and balances with the Central Bank, domestic bonds eligible as collateral against borrowing at the Central
Bank and foreign government bonds in accordance with rules no. 266/2017 on liquidity ratio.

**Short-tem deposits with other banks with maturity less than 30 days.
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Deposits by Liquidity Coverage Ratio category

The Group's deposits are categorised by counterparty according to the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) standard. The groups are listed in
order of estimated stability and the respective LCR outflow weight. Deposits are also classified as stable if the customer has an established
business relationship with the Bank and is covered by an effective insurance scheme.

Deposits maturing within 30 days

Less Weight Weight Term Total

At 31 March 2019 . .
are stable (%) Stable (%) deposits deposits
[ L= 2= | P PPPRPRPPPPPRY 216,532 12% 80,445 5% 80,143 377,120
Operational relationShips ..........ccooiiiiiiiii e 2,924 25% - 5% - 2,924
[©0]7'0Jo] = 140 TSP OTPURPRN 68,445 40% 346 20% 21,848 90,639
Sovereigns, Central Bank and public sector entities .............ccccceeennee. 7,488 40% 267 20% 830 8,585
Pension fUNAS .........ooooiiiiiie e 43,093 100% - - 26,242 69,335
Domestic financial entities ...........c.eeveeiviiiiiie e 26,990 100% - - 38,427 65,417
Foreign financial entities ..........cooiiiiiiiieiiiie e 5,678 100% - - 8,009 13,687
Total 371,150 81,058 175,499 627,707

Deposits maturing within 30 days

Less Weight Weight Term Total
At 31 D 201 . .

t 31 December 2018 stable (%)  Stable (%)  deposits  deposits
RELAI ... 216,428 12% 80,804 5% 78,476 375,708
Operational relationships 2,572 25% - 5% - 2,572
(00170 Jo] = 140 T PR PPRPRN 63,887 40% 341 20% 22,809 87,037
Sovereigns, Central Bank and public sector entities .............ccccceeenee. 7,613 40% 246 20% 591 8,450
Pension funds ............... ... 30,686 100% - - 26,987 57,673
Domestic financial entities ...........coceviiriieiiie e 27,467 100% - - 24,622 52,089
Foreign financial @ntities ..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 3,242 100% - - 7,807 11,049
Total 351,895 81,391 161,292 594,578

50. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The following tables show the contractual payments of principal and interest for the Group's financial liabilities. Thus, the total figures for each
liability class are higher than the respective balance sheet amount. Cash flows for payments of unknown nature, such as for floating rate, CPI-
linked or foreign currency denominated instruments, are based on internal yield curves and forecasts.

For dated financial liabilities the amounts are grouped into maturity buckets according to contractual maturities of principal and estimated
contractual payments of interest. For demand deposits or other non-dated liabilities, the figures are grouped according to the first possible
required payment date.

In accordance with the IFRS 16 standard Lease liabilities has been added to the maturity analysis of financial liabilities.

Maturity analysis 31 March 2019

Carrying On Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over No

Financial liabilities amount demand months  months years 5 years maturity Total
Deposits from CB and credit institutions .......... 16,404 4,634 6,421 5,617 - - - 16,672
Deposits from customers ...........ccccooevvvveeeennne 611,303 440,855 107,388 29,538 25,761 29,671 - 633,213
Debt issued and other borrowed funds ............. 325,035 417 15,369 15,665 268,887 68,059 - 368,397
Subordinated 10ans ... 16,468 - 103 341 2,038 19,813 - 22,295
Other financial liabilities: 44,160 32,231 6,215 1,726 1,534 2,454 - 44,160

Lease liabilities .........ccooecvviiiiiiiiiiiiiecee 4,430 - 159 283 1,534 2,454 - 4,430

Other liabilities .........ccccoeeveeeiieiiicecieee 39,730 32,231 6,056 1,443 - - - 39,730
Total 1,013,370 478,137 135,496 52,887 298,220 119,997 - 1,084,737
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Off-balance sheet liabilities show the amount of contractual obligations that the Group has taken towards customers, either by committing to
lend out money in the future or as third party guarantees. The amounts shown reflect the maximum amount, not taking into account the
Group's ability to reduce overdraft or credit card limits before the current undrawn amount is fully utilised by the customer. These obligations
all fall into the first time bucket since contractually, on a case-by-case basis, the Group could be required to fulfil these obligations

instantaneously.

On Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over No

Off-balance sheet liabilities demand months  months years 5 years maturity Total
Financial guarantees ............ceeeeiiiiiiiiieeeiiiiiee e 18,603 - - - - - 18,603
Undrawn loan commitments .........ccccccvveeeeeiiinieeeeeeeccnieeenn. 52,836 - - - - - 52,836
Undrawn oVerdrafts ..........cccccuvvvveieviveieieierirereeeeeeeeeeeeeerereeenes 48,842 - - - - - 48,842
Credit card COMMItMENTS .......cceveveeeiiiiiie e 32,323 - - - - - 32,323
Total 152,604 - - - - - 152,604
Total non-derivative financial liabilities

and off-balance sheet liabilities ........................ 630,741 135,496 52,887 298,220 119,997 - 1,237,341

The table below shows the contractual cash flow of the Group's derivative liabilities, i.e. derivatives that have a negative and a positive
carrying amount at the reporting date. For derivatives settled on a gross basis, the cash flow for both legs of the derivative is shown, since

netting cannot be applied upon settlement.

On Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over No

Derivative financial liabilities demand months  months years 5 years maturity Total
Gross settled derivatives

INFIOW <o - 17,760 29,766 102,458 1,899 - 151,883
OULFIOW <.t - (18,465) (31,456) (106,666) (2,092) - (158,679)
Total - (705) (1,690) (4,208) (193) - (6,796)
Net settled derivatives ...........ccceeviiiiniieeniee e - (805) - - - - (805)
Total - (1510) (1,690) (4,208) (193) - (7,601)

Maturity classification of assets is based on contractual maturity. For bonds and debt instruments in the banking book the maturity
classification is based on contractual maturity dates while for bonds and debt instruments held for trading the maturity classification is based

on the estimated liquidation time of the asset.

Carrying On Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over No
Financial assets amount demand months  months years 5 years maturity Total
Cash and balances with Central Bank .............. 129,039 32,950 96,089 - - - - 129,039
Bonds and debt instruments ..............cocceen. 80,809 - 28,818 25,552 12,659 13,780 - 80,809
Shares and equity instruments ..............cccceeeee 15,268 - - - - - 15,268 15,268
Loans to credit institutions .............ccccvvvvveeeeenn. 65,145 23,206 41,939 - - - - 65,145
L0oans to CUSIOMENS .........cceeeiiiiiiiiieeeeiiiieeennn 873,530 3,416 90,461 76,442 300,733 402,478 - 873,530
Other financial assets .........cccccccevvvciieeeeeeiinnens 19,650 10,952 573 52 10 - 8,063 19,650
Total 1,183,441 70,524 257,880 102,046 313,402 416,258 23,331 1,183,441
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On Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over No
Derivative financial assets demand months  months years 5 years maturity Total
Gross settled derivatives
- 30,600 13,736 53,932 327 - 98,595
- (29,923) (13,057) (49,964) (342) - (93,286)
Total - 677 679 3,968 (15) - 5,309
Net settled derivatives ..........ccccoooieiiiiiiiiiiieee e - 362 - - - - 362
Total - 1,039 679 3,968 (15) - 5,671
The tables below show the comparative amounts for maturity analysis at year-end 2018.
Maturity analysis 31 December 2018
Carrying On Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over No
Financial liabilities amount demand months  months years 5 years maturity Total
Deposits from CB and credit institutions ......... 15,619 4,594 3,229 4,992 3,249 - - 16,064
Deposits from customers ...........cccevvvvvveeeennne 578,959 420,242 81,178 37,952 26,976 38,070 - 604,418
Debt issued and other borrowed funds ............. 300,976 404 24,214 21,178 154,315 141,098 - 341,209
Subordinated loans .............ccccccoeee, 16,216 - 90 307 2,242 20,417 - 23,056
Other financial liabilities .............ccccoocieiiinnns 27,186 24,431 1,729 1,026 - - - 27,186
Total 938,956 449,671 110,440 65,455 186,782 199,585 - 1,011,933
On Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over No
Off-balance sheet liabilities demand months  months years 5 years maturity Total
Financial guarantees ..........ccccceeeiiieiiniieeniiee e 18,021 - - - - - 18,021
Undrawn loan COMmItments ............covevcveeeniiiiieniniee e 49,054 - - - - - 49,054
UNndrawn overdrafts ..........cocoveeeiiiieiiiieeiiiee e 49,833 - - - - - 49,833
Credit card COMMItMENLS .......cooiuiiiiiiiiiriieeeiee e 29,049 - - - - - 29,049
Total 145,957 - - - - - 145,957
Total non-derivative financial liabilities
and off-balance sheet liabilities ............ccccooiieiiiieiiieeene, 595,628 110,440 65,455 186,782 199,585 - 1,157,890
On Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over No
Derivative financial liabilities demand months  months years 5 years maturity Total
Gross settled derivatives
INFIOW i - 20,124 23,147 49,380 1,771 - 94,422
OULFIOW <. - (20,638) (24,189) (51,654) (1,943) - (198,424)
Total - (514) (1,042) (2,274) (172) - (4,002)
Net settled derivatives ...........ccceevieiinieeeniee e - (280) - - - - (280)
Total - (794) (1,042) (2,274) (172) - (4,282)
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Carrying On Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over No
Financial assets amount demand months  months years 5 years maturity Total
Cash and balances with Central Bank .............. 135,056 47,746 87,310 - - - - 135,056
Bonds and debt instruments ...........ccccccoeeiiinne 69,415 - 18,946 24,189 14,409 11,604 267 69,415
Shares and equity instruments ............ 13,074 - - - - - 13,074 13,074
Loans to credit institutions ...........cccceeeviivieennnn. 41,577 24,152 17,425 - - - - 41,577
L0oans to CUSTOMENS .......c.eevvivieiiiiieeiiiee e 846,599 2,054 90,269 74,716 282,624 396,936 - 846,599
Other financial assets .........cccccceviiiiieiiiiniiiiees 7,511 1,888 475 71 9 - 5,068 7,511
Total 1,113,232 75,840 214,425 98,976 297,042 408,540 18,409 1,113,232
On Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over No
Derivative financial assets demand months  months years 5 years maturity Total
Gross settled derivatives
INFIOW e - 57,050 22,267 77,126 327 - 156,770
OULFIOW . - (56,077) (21,929) (74,072) (343) - (152,421)
Total - 973 338 3,054 (16) - 4,349
Net settled derivatives ..........ccccooviiiiiie e - 869 - - - - 869
Total - 1,842 338 3,054 (16) - 5,218

51. Market risk

The Group defines market risk as the current or prospective risk to earnings and capital arising from adverse movements in the level or
volatility of prices of market instruments, such as those that arise from changes in interest rates, equity prices, commodity prices and foreign
exchange rates.

Market risk within the Group can broadly be split into two categories, trading book and banking book. The trading book includes market risk
exposures related, directly or indirectly, to the Group's short- and medium-term trading in securities, currencies and other capital market
instruments and derivatives. All financial assets and liabilities in the trading portfolio are recognised at fair value and all resulting changes are
immediately reflected in the income statement. The banking book includes market risk exposures related to securities held for long-term
investment purposes, unlisted securities or holdings in subsidiaries or affiliates. A large part of the banking book market risk is due to
mismatches in the composition of assets and liabilities, for example with respect to currencies, interest rates, CPI-indexation or other factors
that can affect the Group's earnings or earnings volatility. These mismatches are reported to management and are subject to internal and
requlatory limits.

52. Derivatives

The Group uses derivatives to hedge currency exposure, interest rate risk in the banking book as well as inflation risk. However, the Group is
subject to indirect exposure through customers' margin trading. Margin trading is subject to continuous monitoring and collateral
requirements. Other derivatives held for trading or for other purposes are insignificant.

53. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is defined as the current or prospective risk to earnings or capital arising from adverse movements in interest rates.

Sensitivity measures like Basis Point Value (BPV) are used to measure and manage risk arising from its fixed income exposures. The BPV
measures the effect of a 0.01 percentage point upward parallel shift in the yield curve on the fair value of these exposures.
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Interest rate risk in the trading book

The fixed income trading unit invests mainly in government bonds, bonds issued by the Housing Financing Fund (HFF) which are guaranteed
by the Icelandic Government, domestic municipality bonds and covered bonds issued by other Icelandic banks. Bonds and bills in the
Group's liquidity portfolio are also categorised in the trading book. In the table below the total market value (MV) of long and short positions
may not be the same as reported in Note 5 since netting between short and long positions is not applied here. Derivatives and securities
used for hedging are excluded from the table.

31.3.2019 31.12.2018
Trading bonds and debt instruments, long positions MV Duration BPV MV Duration BPV
INAEXED ..ottt en e eneen 2,084 5.89 (1.23) 1,872 6.13 (1.15)
NON-INAEXEA ...t 52,347 0.30 (1.59) 43,550 0.32 (1.40)
Total 54,431 0.51 (2.82) 45422 0.56 (2.55)
31.3.2019 31.12.2018
Trading bonds and debt instruments, short positions MV Duration BPV MV Duration BPV
INAEXEA ... 29 15 - - - -
NON-INAEXEA ...ttt 434 6.00 0.26 198 5.00 0.09
Total 463 6.56 0.31 198 5.00 0.09
Net position of trading bonds and debt instruments 53,968 0.46 (2.51) 45,224 0.54 (2.46)

Interest rate risk in the banking book

Interest rate risk in the banking book arises from the Group's core banking activities. The main source of this type of interest rate risk is the
risk of loss from fluctuations in future cash flows or fair value of financial instruments as interest rates change over time, reflecting the fact
that the Group's assets and liabilities are of different maturities and are priced relative to different interest rates.

The following table shows the interest sensitivity of the Group's banking book from a parallel 100 basis points change in all yield curves, with
all other variables held constant, categorised by the date of next interest rate reset.

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk in the banking book

At 31 March 2019

0-3 3-12 1-2 2-5 5-10 Over 10
Currency months  months years years years years Total
ISK, INAEXEA ...t 7 159 (352) (1,593) 1,815 137 173
ISK, NON-INAEXEd ......ooiiiiiiiiiiiieiiice e 14 17 (38) (218) (6) (5) (236)
BUR s 130 (39) 24 89 - - 204
SEK ittt 14 - - - - - 14
L] SRR S (47) (13) - - - - (60)
OFNET . 17 11 - (107) - - (79)
Total 135 135 (366) (1,829) 1,809 132 16
At 31 December 2018

0-3 3-12 1-2 2-5 5-10 Over 10
Currency months  months years years years years Total
ISK, INAEXEA ...t 20 8 110 (3,318) 3,185 72 77
ISK, NON-INAEXEA .....ooveieiiiiiieciie e 9 57 (7) (193) (77) (1) (212)
EUR s 87 (25) 13 (1,605) 1,709 - 179
SEK ettt 92 - (16) - - - 76
USD it (63) - - - - - (63)
L ] Y ST (1) (11) - - - - (12)
Total 144 29 100 (5,116) 4,817 71 45
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54. Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that earnings or capital may be negatively affected from the fluctuations of foreign exchange rates, due to transactions in foreign currencies or due to a mismatch in the currency
composition of assets or liabilities.

The analysis of the Group's foreign currency exposure presented below is based on the contractual currency of the underlying balance sheet items. Additionally, there are off-balance sheet items that carry
currency risk and are included in the total currency imbalance. The off-balance sheet amounts below represent the notional amounts of derivatives and unsettled spot agreements.

Currency analysis at 31 March 2019

Other foreign  Total foreign

Assets EUR usb GBP CHF JPY SEK NOK DKK CAD currencies currencies
Cash and balances with Central Bank ............... 778 465 198 69 16 82 120 133 35 123 2,019
Bonds and debt instruments ...........cccceecvninnnnnnn. 29,444 11,294 27 - - - 12,703 - - - 53,468
Shares and equity instruments ..............ccceeeee. 50 2,830 429 - - - 43 - - - 3,352
Loans to credit institutions .. 16,933 33,079 6,209 117 725 599 5,706 976 69 623 65,036
LOANS t0 CUSTOMENS ......vvvvveieiiiiieiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 112,708 32,010 2,156 714 3,319 2 4,362 1,200 6,004 39 162,514
Other aSSEtS ......ovvvviieeiiie et 1,263 2,435 1,454 5 - 68 4 17 - 2,218 7,464
Total assets 161,176 82,113 10,473 905 4,060 751 22,938 2,326 6,108 3,003 293,853
Liabilities

Deposits from credit institutions ................cc....... 5,794 27 91 - 101 - 17 - - - 6,030
Deposits from customers ........c.ccccevvveeenieeennnen. 31,074 40,639 4,583 368 538 1,002 3,116 2,687 479 59 84,545
Debt issued and other borrowed funds .............. 114,890 - - - - 43,056 19,966 - - - 177,912
Subordinated 10ans .........ccccccceviiii - - - - - 16,468 - - - - 16,468
Other liabilities ...........ccccvvveiiiiieeiccee e 3,017 1,389 1,509 37 120 109 49 46 38 2,099 8,413
Total liabilities 154,775 42,055 6,183 405 759 60,635 23,148 2,733 517 2,158 293,368
Net on-balance sheet position 6,401 40,058 4,290 500 3,301 (59,884) (210) (407) 5,591 845 485
Net off-balance sheet position (7,115) (139,105) (4,170) (530) (3,346) 59,903 271 535 (5,623) (89) 731
Net position (714) 953 120 (30) (45) 19 61 128 (32) 756 1,216
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Currency analysis at 31 December 2018

Other foreign  Total foreign

Assets EUR usD GBP CHF JPY SEK NOK DKK CAD currencies currencies
Cash and balances with Central Bank ............... 377 250 135 23 10 54 51 88 29 73 1,090
Bonds and debt instruments ............cccccceevvneenn. 32,313 10,968 24 - - - - - - - 43,305
Shares and equity instruments ............cccceeevinns 45 2,202 398 - - - 40 - - - 2,685
Loans to credit institutions ...........ccccccecvvveeeeenns 15,662 12,614 4,488 258 613 4,683 1,901 530 123 538 41,410
L0ans to CUSIOMEIS ......vveieiiiiiiiiiee e 105,852 31,603 2,037 734 3,213 2 4,318 572 5,710 39 154,080
Other aSSEtS ..uuvvvieeiiciiiiee e 1,270 2,056 834 4 91 83 2 45 - 1,737 6,122
Total assets 155,519 59,693 7,916 1,019 3,927 4,822 6,312 1,235 5,862 2,387 248,692
Liabilities

Deposits from credit institutions .................c....... 5,622 538 83 - 96 - 16 - - - 6,355
Deposits from customers ..........cccceeeveiiveeeeeenne 26,605 26,819 4,293 329 430 927 3,211 1,728 434 144 64,920
Debt issued and other borrowed funds .............. 113,670 - - - - 41,764 - - - - 155,434
Subordinated 10aNns ...........ccccoooeeeiii - - - - - 16,216 - - - - 16,216
Other liabilities 2,502 1,269 578 30 266 82 154 138 - 2,098 7,117
Total liabilities 148,399 28,626 4,954 359 792 58,989 3,381 1,866 434 2,242 250,042
Net on-balance sheet position 7,120 31,067 2,962 660 3,135 (54,167) 2,931 (631) 5,428 145 (1,350)
Net off-balance sheet position (7,589) (31,140) (2,964) (667) (3,170) 54,350 (2,844) 642 (5,418) (147) 1,053
Net position (469) (73) (2) (7) (35) 183 87 11 10 (2) (297)

islandsbanki hf. Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements first quarter 2019 52 Amounts are in ISK million



Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

55. Inflation risk

The Group is exposed to inflation risk since the value of CPI-linked assets exceeds CPI-linked liabilities. The value of these assets and
liabilities changes according to changes in the CPI at any given time and all changes in the CPI affect profit and loss. A 1% increase in the
index would lead to an ISK 112 million increase in the balance sheet and a 1% decrease would lead to a corresponding decrease, other risk
factors held constant.

Assets, CPI-linked 31.3.2019 31.12.2018
Bonds and debt instruments 2,996 2,721
Loans to customers 291,002 293,917
Total assets 293,998 296,638
Liabilities, CPI-linked

Deposits from customers ...........ccccc..... 97,862 95,917
Debt issued and other borrowed funds 116,820 118,103
Off-DAlANCE SNEET POSITION ....eiitiii ittt et sbe e e e e bt e e e e bt e e ettt e e e nbs e e e snbeeeanbeeeannne 68,076 70,617
Total liabilities 282,758 284,637
CPl imbalance 11,240 12,001

56. Capital management

The following table shows the capital base, risk exposure amount, the resulting capital ratios, and leverage for the Group at 31 March 2019
and 31 December 2018. In addition, the table shows the official capital ratios where the unaudited profit of the first quarter is excluded
according to the Act on Financial Undertakings.

The Group's regulatory capital requirement is calculated according to CRD IV as implemented through Act no. 161/2002 on Financial
Undertakings and regulation no. 233/2017 on prudential requirements for financial undertakings. Capital requirement calculations for credit
risk and market risk are based on the standardised approach whereas the capital requirement calculations for operational risk are based on
the basic indicator approach.

The Group aims at managing its capital position and the corresponding capital ratios above the overall regulatory capital requirement.
According to the latest SREP report from the Financial Supervisory Authority, published in October 2018, the overall capital requirement is
18.8%, increasing to 19.3% in May 2019 when the countercyclical buffer will increase by 0.5%. The Group's capital target includes a 0.5-
2.0% management buffer on top of the overall capital requirement.

The minimum leverage ratio for Icelandic financial institutions is 3%.
31.3.2019  31.12.2018

CET1 capital

OrdiNary SNAE CAPITA ......coueiiiiiiie ittt ettt et bt e e e ab et e s bb e e e bb e e e e sbb e e e sbeeeasbeeeanbbeeeanbeeeanneeeannne 10,000 10,000
Share premium ... 55,000 55,000
RESEIVES ... et e bt e e et e e e e bbb e e s e s b e e e e e a e e e 6,776 6,499
[RI=] =TT To B CT: U4 o1 g SRR RPRR 99,401 102,496
NON-CONEFOING INTEIESES ....eiiieiiieit ittt e e ettt e e e s ek bbbt et e e e ek bbbt e e e e e annbbe e e e e e e annbbbeeeeeaanbnbeeeeeeanes 2,444 2,318
Fair value changes due to OWn Credit STANAING .......coooiiiiiiiii e 871 376
LI E1 = T PP TPTOPPTUPPTTOR (292) (215)
INTANGIDIE ASSELS ...ttt a ettt e et e et e s bttt et et e s (4,868) (5,002)
Total CET1 capital 169,332 171,472
Tier 2 capital

Qualifying subordinated ADIITIES ............eiiiiiiiii et 16,468 16,216
Total capital base 185,800 187,688
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56. Contd
31.3.2019  31.12.2018
Risk exposure amount
B e (U= (oI ol 1= 1 1] PO UR PPN 789,806 750,801
= AUE 1O MATKEL FISK ..ttt e et s et st e e s et e s b et e s ket e e e abe e e s eba e e eabneeeaanns 9,877 7,622
Market risk, trading BOOK .........coiuiiiiiii et e e 7,843 6,649
(OIN =T o T ] TP RPT RO UPPPRPTON 2,034 973
- due to credit valuation @dJUSTMENT ..........ooiiiiiiiiie ettt e et et e e bt e st e e e e enbe e e sbaeesbeeeeans 2,077 2,385
Bl VI (ol o] o1=] r= 1a (o] o P 1 S ST UUT U PPPPPRTN 85,141 85,141
Total risk exposure amount 886,901 845,949
Capital ratios
(@] I T TR UPP VSRR 19.1% 20.3%
Total capital ratio 20.9% 22.2%
(0o T I 1= g T RO PSR TTEPETTRTTP 18.8% 20.3%
OFFICIAI CAPITAL FAIO ....vevveteeteete ettt ettt ettt st e s e st e tesbe e eseese et e e se b e s s ese et e ebeebe s es s eseeaeese b e s s eneeteebesae s enseseanennenee 20.7% 22.2%
Leverage ratio
Exposure amount
ON-DAlANCE SNEEL EXPOSUIES .....oiiiiiiiiiie e e ittt e e e ettt e e e e e s bttt e e e e s ta b ettt e e e s s abeeeaeeeaasbbbeeeaesaanbsbeeeaeesassbteeeeesannsbneeaaeaan 1,195,230 1,120,637
Off-DalanCe SNEETL EXPOSUIES ......cciiiiiiiiiiie ittt e e e bt e e ket e e e abe e e e bb e e e as bt e e anbb e e e anbeeesntneeannns 48,056 47,119
Derivative exposures 9,667 8,935
Leverage ratio total exposure measure 1,252,953 1,176,691
B G o= o - | OO UUPPTP 169,332 171,472
Leverage ratio 13.5% 14.6%
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